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Company Overview

 

EnNutrica Proteins Division, Dindigul Farm Product 

Ltd., is established in 2011 and Has Started the 

Production of Skimmed Milk Powder, Milk Protein 

Concentrates, Milk Whey Powder, Whey Powder, 

Evaporated Milk, Dairy Whitener, and Casein from 

Skimmed Milk by 2015.  

By 2024 June 27th, we got Listed in BSE and became 

Dindigul farm Product Limited. 

The Procurement of Milk is From  

• 150 Village Level Collections Centers Having 40 to 70 Farmers per Village Collection 

Center supplying at the volume of 10 to 25 Liters from Micro Farmers and 30 to 40 

Liters Per Associated Farms. 

• Third Party Supplying Milk in Bulk  

 The proteins are Supplied to Businesses in the name of Formula 7+, Formula 8 and Formula 8+  

The High-Quality Proteins are also available directly via the ActivDay retail packs. The retail 

Version of the Proteins are named PRIME. To cater to all Customers.  

 

 

  

https://www.ennutrica.com/products/skimmed_milk_powder_smp/
https://www.ennutrica.com/products/formula_milk_protein_concentrate/
https://www.ennutrica.com/products/formula_milk_protein_concentrate/
https://www.ennutrica.com/products/milk_whey_powder_lpp/
https://www.ennutrica.com/products/whey_powder_wpp/
https://www.ennutrica.com/products/evaporated_milk/
https://www.ennutrica.com/products/dairy_whitener_dw/
https://www.ennutrica.com/products/casein/
https://www.ennutrica.com/products/formula_milk_protein_concentrate/
https://www.ennutrica.com/activday/
https://www.ennutrica.com/activday/activday_prime/


 

 Board of Directors | 03 

                                             

 
15th Annual Report 2024-25 

 

 

 

Mr. R Rajasekaran  

Chairman and Managing Director (DIN: 01789110) 

 

Mr. R Rajasekaran having nearly 25 years’ experience in Dairy and Dairy Products 

Industry, has experience running a Dairy Industry since 1999 and raised from 1000 

Liters Per Day to 2 Lakhs Liters Per Day. With 40 + years of Experience as a Key 

Person in Running Many Industries, starting his Career in Chemical, Packaged 

Drinking Water and Dairy. He has played a pivotal role in the Company’s growth 

journey, guiding it to new heights through her visionary leadership. He currently oversees overall 

operations, driving efficiency, innovation, and sustained progress across all business verticals. He holds a 

Master of Science in Chemistry. 

 

 

Mrs. Rajadharshini Rajasekaran  

Non-Executive Director (DIN: 03161629) 

 

Mrs. Rajadharshini, associated with Dindigul Farm Product Limited since 2010, 

brings strong technical expertise and global business acumen to support the 

Company’s continued growth and innovation. She holds a Bachelor of Technology 

in Industrial Biotechnology from Vivekananda college of engineering for women, 

Tiruchengode, and a Post Graduate Diploma in Laboratory Course in Bio 

Techniques from Institute of Bioinformatics and Applied Biotechnology, Bangalore. 

 

 

Mr. Ravi Rajappan 

Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director (DIN: 01969263) 

 

widely known as R. R. Ravi, is a distinguished professional with an illustrious 

four-decade-long career in the dynamic fields of electrical and renewable energy 

power projects. Beyond his substantial contributions to the power industry, Mr. 

Ravi Rajappan has demonstrated a remarkable diversification of expertise, 

extending his influence into healthcare and various manufacturing sectors, including Pharmaceuticals, 

Boilers, and Milk products. 
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Dr. B N Padmaja Priyadarshini 

Independent Woman Director (DIN: 06416242) 

 

She holds multiple post-graduation in the fields of Statistics, Hindi Literature 

and Management along with a Master of Philosophy in International Business 

and Doctorate in the field of Women Entrepreneurship. She is a corporate 

trainer and conducts research workshops in R Studio, MATLAB, Python, 

SPSS & AMOS. She is a statistical consultant for Tshwane University of 

Technology, & University of Venda, South Africa. She is working as a “Part 

Time Bio Statistician” for Sarada Krishna Medical College & White Memorial Medical College, 

Kanyakumari District. She is the co-founder of Allied Academy of Languages due to her passion towards 

education. She has co-authored the book titled “International Economics” along with Prof Paul Krugman of City 

University of New York and Prof Marc. J Melitz of Harvard University published by M/s Pearson India. 

 

Mr. N M Ranganathan 

Independent Director (DIN: 06377402) 

 

He is a Senior Practicing Legal professional with multiple accounting 

qualifications; He has significant management experience for decades 

through stints in listed IT / shipping companies besides appreciable exposure 

in stocks & derivatives market. Presently engaged as legal & management 

consulting in charge to a large construction & Publishing Group. He has also 

served as directorships in Indrayani Biotech Limited, SIP Industries Limited and Garudii AI Private 

Limited. 
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FROM THE CHAIRMAN’S DESK  
 

Dear Shareholders, 

 

We extend our heartfelt gratitude for your continued trust and 

support, which remain the foundation of our progress. With your 

confidence, we have secured strategic investments in advanced 

machinery that not only expand our production capacity but also 

strengthen our ability to develop specialized milk protein 

powders for niche applications—thereby enhancing our 

competitive edge in domestic and global markets.  

 

The Protein segment is also witnessing steady growth, driven by 

the rising consumer demand for protein-enriched products. This 

positive momentum reinforces our commitment to innovation, 

value creation, and long-term stakeholder returns. 

 

Thank you once again for being an integral part of our journey. 

 

Warm regards, 

 

R Rajasekaran 

Chairman and Managing Director  
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Board of Directors 

Mr. Raju Rajasekaran   

Chairman and Managing Director 
 

Mrs. Rajadharshini Rajasekaran  

Non-Executive Director 
 

Mr. Rajappan Ravi 

Non-Executive Non-Independent Director 
 

Mr. Nangavaram Mahadevan Ranganathan  

Independent Director 
 

Mrs. Bokara Nagarajan Padmaja Priyadarshini 

Independent Woman Director 

Key Managerial Personnel  

Mr. Gurunathan Uma Kanth Narayanan 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
 

Mrs. Velvizhi Ganesan 

Chief Financial Officer 
 

Board Committees 

Audit Committee 

Mrs. Bokara Nagarajan Padmaja Priyadarshini 

Mr. Nangavaram Mahadevan Ranganathan 

Mr. Raju Rajasekaran 

 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

Mrs. Bokara Nagarajan Padmaja Priyadarshini 

Mr. Nangavaram Mahadevan Ranganathan 

Mr. Rajappan Ravi 

 

Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee 

Mr. Rajappan Ravi 

Mr. Nangavaram Mahadevan Ranganathan 

Mrs. Bokara Nagarajan Padmaja Priyadarshini 

 

Corporate Social Responsibilities Committee 

Mr. Nangavaram Mahadevan Ranganathan 

Mr. Raju Rajasekaran 

Mrs. Rajadharshini Rajasekaran 

Corporate Identification Number 

L15200TZ2010PLC016407 
 

Registered Office 

No 2/52-3, Pillaiyarnatham, 

Pithalaipatti Post, Dindigul – 624 002. 

Website: www.ennutrica.com 

E-mail: info@ennutrica.com 
 

Factory Address 

S.F.No.767-769,  

Karuthanaickanpatti Road,  

Sendurai Village, Natham Taluk, 

Dindigul - 624 403. 
 

Statutory Auditor 

M/s Venkatesh & Co 

Chartered Accountants 

No: 151, Sri Ranga, Mambalam High Road, 

T Nagar, Chennai - 600 017. 
 

Secretarial Auditor 

Mr S Muthu Raju 

Practicing Company Secretary 

No: 35, IInd Floor, North Masi Street, 

Madurai - 625 001. 
 

Internal Auditor 

M/s VSSR & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

New No 526, Old No.263A, 

Dr. Radhakrishnan Road West, 

Tatabad, Coimabatore – 641 012. 
 

Banker 

State Bank of India, SME Branch, Dindigul 

 

Stock Exchange 

BSE Limited 

 

Registrars & Share Transfer Agents 

M/s. MUFG INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED, 

Surya 35, Mayflower Avenue,  

Behind Senthil Nagar,  

Sowripalayam Road,  

Coimbatore – 641 028.  

Phone: 0422-2314792  

Email: coimbatore@in.mpms.mufg.com  

 

 

 

http://www.ennutrica.com/
mailto:info@ennutrica.com
mailto:coimbatore@linkintime.co.in
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Notice of the 15th Annual General Meeting 

 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 15th Annual 

General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of 

DINDIGUL FARM PRODUCT LIMITED (‘the 

Company’) will be held at the Registered Office of 

the Company at “No. 2/52-3, Pillaiyarnatham, 

Pithalaipatty Post, Dindigul – 624 002, the 25th day 

of September, 2025 at 03.30 P.M. through video 

conferencing ('VC') / other audio visual means 

('OAVM') to transact the following business. 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

1. ADOPTION OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS 

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited 

Financial Statements of the Company for the 

Financial Year ended 31st March 2025 

together with the reports of Auditors thereon 

and Board of Directors. 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the 

following resolution, with or without 

modification(s), as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial 

Statements of the Company for the Financial 

Year ended 31st March 2025, together with the 

reports of the Auditors thereon and Board of 

Directors be and are hereby received, 

considered and adopted.” 

2. APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR LIABLE 

TO RETIRE BY ROTATION 

To appoint Mrs. Rajadharshini Rajasekaran 

(DIN: 03161629), who retires by rotation in 

terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 

2013 and being eligible, seeks re-appointment. 

In this regard, to consider and, if thought fit, to  

 

pass with or without modification(s), the 

following resolution as an Ordinary 

Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the 

provisions of Section 152 and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

approval of members of the Company, be and is 

hereby accorded to re-appoint Mrs. 

Rajadharshini Rajasekaran (DIN: 03161629) as 

a Non-Executive Director, who is liable to retire 

by rotation.” 

 

3. APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR LIABLE 

TO RETIRE BY ROTATION 

To appoint Mr. Ravi Rajappan (DIN: 

01969263), who retires by rotation in terms of 

Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

being eligible, seeks re-appointment. In this 

regard, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass 

with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the 

provisions of Section 152 and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

approval of members of the Company, be and 

is hereby accorded to re-appoint Mr. Ravi 

Rajappan (DIN: 01969263) as a Non-

Executive Non-Independent Director, who is 

liable to retire by rotation.” 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 Notice to Shareholders | 09 

                                             

 
15th Annual Report 2024-25 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 

4. TO APPROVE MATERIAL RELATED 

PARTY TRANSACTION(S) BETWEEN 

THE COMPANY AND A R DAIRY FOOD 

PRIVATE LIMITED: 

 

To approve the material related party 

transaction between Dindigul Farm Product 

Limited and A R Dairy Food Private Limited, 

up to an amount of Rs. 50 Crores. 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or 

without modification(s), the following 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the 

provisions of Section 188 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“Act”) and other applicable 

provisions, if any, read with Rule 15 of the 

Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) 

Rules, 2014, as amended till date, Regulations 

2(1)(zc) and 23(4) of the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 (“Listing Regulations”), approval of the 

members of the Company be and is hereby 

accorded to the Board of Directors of the 

Company to enter into contract(s)/ 

arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) with M/s. A R 

Dairy Food Private Limited, related party 

within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 2(1)(zb) 

of the Listing Regulations, for any transaction 

on any terms and conditions as recommended 

by the Audit Committee and as the Board of 

Directors may deem fit, up to a maximum 

aggregate value of Rs. 50 Crores (Rupees Fifty  

 

 

Crores Only) from the financial year 2025-26 

and ending with the financial year 2029-30, 

provided that the said contract(s)/ 

arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) so carried out 

shall be at arm’s length basis and in the 

ordinary course of business of the Company.” 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of 

the directors of the Board (which includes any 

Committee of the Board) be and are hereby 

severally authorized to do all necessary acts, 

deeds, things and execute all such documents, 

undertaking as may be necessary in this regard 

from time to time to give effect to the above 

resolution.” 

5. TO APPROVE MATERIAL RELATED 

PARTY TRANSACTION(S) BETWEEN 

THE COMPANY AND INDRAYANI 

BIOTECH LIMITED, HOLDING 

COMPANY: 

To approve the material related party 

transaction between Dindigul Farm Product 

Limited and Indrayani Biotech Limited, 

Holding Company of Dindigul Farm Product 

Limited up to an amount of Rs. 50 Crores. 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or 

without modification(s), the following 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the 

provisions of Section 188 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“Act”) and other applicable 

provisions, if any, read with Rule 15 of the 

Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) 
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Rules, 2014, as amended till date, Regulations 

2(1)(zc) and 23(4) of the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 (“Listing Regulations”), approval of the 

members of the Company be and is hereby 

accorded to the Board of Directors of the 

Company to enter into contract(s)/ 

arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) with M/s. 

Indrayani Biotech Limited, related party within 

the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the 

Listing Regulations, for any transaction on any 

terms and conditions as recommended by the 

Audit Committee and as the Board of Directors 

may deem fit, up to a maximum aggregate 

value of Rs. 50 Crores (Rupees Fifty Crores 

Only) for the Financial Year 2024-25, provided 

that the said contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ 

transaction(s) so carried out shall be at arm’s 

length basis and in the ordinary course of 

business of the Company.” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of 

the directors of the Board (which includes any 

Committee of the Board) be and are hereby 

severally authorized to do all necessary acts, 

deeds, things and execute all such documents, 

undertaking as may be necessary in this regard 

from time to time to give effect to the above 

resolution.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

By the order of the Board of Directors 

Dindigul Farm Product Limited 

Sd/- 

Mr. Gurunathan Uma Kanth Narayanan 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

M. No. ACS10686 

Place: Dindigul 

Date: 30th August 2025 

 

Registered Office 

No 2/52-3, Pillaiyarnatham, 

Pithalaipatti Post, 

Dindigul – 624 002. 

Website: www.ennutrica.com 

E-mail: info@ennutrica.com 

  

http://www.ennutrica.com/
mailto:info@ennutrica.com
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NOTES 

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government 

of India (the “MCA”) vide its General Circulars 

No. 14/2020, No. 17/2020, No. 20/2020, No. 

02/2021, No. 2/2022 and No. 10/2022 dated 

April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020, 

January 13, 2021, May 5, 2022 and December 

28, 2022 respectively (hereinafter, collectively 

referred as the “MCA Circulars”) read with the 

SEBI Circulars No. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79, No. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11, No. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 and No. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated May 

12, 2020, January 15, 2021, May 13, 2022 and 

January 5, 2023 respectively (hereinafter, 

collectively referred as the “SEBI Circulars” and 

together with the MCA Circulars referred as the 

“Circulars”) has allowed companies to conduct 

their annual general meetings through Video 

Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio Visual 

Means (“OAVM”), thereby, dispensing with the 

requirement of physical attendance of the 

members at their AGMs and accordingly, the 

15th  Annual General Meeting (the “AGM” or the 

“15th AGM” or the “Meeting”) of Dindigul Farm 

Product Limited (the “Company”) will be held 

through VC or OAVM in compliance with the 

Circulars, the relevant provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (as amended) (the “Act”) 

and the rules made thereunder and the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) 

(the “Listing Regulations”). Members attending 

the AGM through VC or OAVM shall be 

counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum 

under Section 103 of the Act. 

2. Keeping the convenience of the Members 

positioned in different time zones, the Meeting 

has been scheduled at 3.30 P.M. (IST). 

3. The Members can join the AGM in the 

VC/OAVM mode 30 minutes before and after 

the scheduled time of the commencement of the 

Meeting by following the procedure mentioned 

in the Notice. The facility of participation at the 

AGM through VC/OAVM will be made 

available for members on “first come first served 

basis”. This will not include large Shareholders  

 

(Shareholders holding 2% or more 

shareholding), Promoters, Institutional 

Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, 

the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors 

etc., who are allowed to attend the AGM without 

restriction on account of “first come first served” 

basis. 

4. Members attending the AGM through 

VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of 

reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

5. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 

08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend 

and cast vote for the members is not available for 

this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 

112 and 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

representatives of the members such as the 

President of India or the Governor of a State or 

Body Corporates can attend the AGM through 

VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-

voting. 

Corporate Members intending to send their 

authorized representatives to attend the meeting 

pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 

2013 are requested to send to the Company, a 

certified copy of the relevant Board resolution 

together with the specimen signatures of their 

authorized representatives to attend and vote on 

their behalf at the meeting. The said resolution / 

authorisation shall also be sent to the Scrutinizer 

by email gkrkgram@yahoo.in with the copy 

marked to the company at email id 

cs@ennutrica.com and to its RTA at 

enotices@in.mpms.mufg.com.  

6. Since the 15th AGM will be held through VC or 

OAVM, no Route Map is being provided with 

the Notice. The deemed venue for the 15th AGM 

shall be the Registered Office of the Company. 

7. In case of Joint-holders, the Member whose 

name higher in the order of names will be 

entitled to vote during the AGM.  

 

mailto:gkrkgram@yahoo.in
mailto:cs@ennutrica.com
mailto:enotices@Linkintime.co.in
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8. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 

102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in 

respect of the special business is annexed hereto.  

9. Dispatch of Annual Report through E-mail In 

accordance with the Circulars, the Notice along 

with the Annual Report of the Company for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2025, will be sent 

only through e-mail, to those Members whose e-

mail addresses are registered with the Company 

or the RTA or the Depository Participant(s). 

Hard copy of the Annual Report shall be sent to 

those shareholders who request for the same. 

The Notice and the Annual Report for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2025 shall be 

available on the websites of the Company viz., 

www.ennutrica.com and Stock Exchanges i.e. 

BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and also on 

the website of MUFG Intime India Private 

Limited (agency for providing the Remote e-

Voting facility) ie., 

https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/. 

10. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) 

Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of 

SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), 

and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 

2020 and May 05, 2020, the Company is 

providing facility of remote e-Voting to its 

Members in respect of the business to be 

transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the 

company has engaged the services of MUFG 

Intime India Private Limited (“MIIPL”) to 

provide the facility of voting through electronic 

means to the members to enable them cast their 

votes electronically in respect of all the 

businesses to be transacted at the aforesaid 

meeting. The facility of casting votes by a 

member using remote e-Voting system as well as 

voting at the meeting will be provided by MIIPL 

via Instavote. The instructions for participation 

by members are given in the subsequent 

paragraphs. 

 

 

11. The Board of Directors has appointed M/s. KRA 

& Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, 

Chennai, as the Scrutinizer for the purpose of 

scrutinizing the remote e-voting and e-voting 

process, provided in the meeting in a fair and 

transparent manner. 

 

12. The Scrutinizer, after scrutinizing the votes cast 

during the meeting and through remote e-voting, 

will, not later than 2 working days of conclusion 

of the Meeting, make a consolidated 

scrutinizer’s report and submit the same to the 

Chairman. The results declared along with the 

consolidated scrutinizer’s report shall be placed 

on the website of the Company Dindigul Farm 

Product Limited www.ennutrica.com and be 

communicated to the Stock exchanges where the 

shares of the company are listed either by the 

chairman, until the end. 

13. The remote e-voting period begins on 22th 

September, 2025 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on 24th 

September, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-

voting module shall be disabled for voting 

thereafter. The Members, whose names appear 

in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners 

as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e., 18th 

September, 2025, may cast their vote 

electronically. The voting right of shareholders 

shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-

up equity share capital of the Company as on the 

cut-off date, being 18th September, 2025. 

14. The Register of Members and Share Transfer 

Books of the Company shall remain closed from 

Friday, 19th September, 2025, to Thrusday, 25th 

September, 2025 (both days inclusive) for the 

purpose of Annual General Meeting of the 

Company. 

15. Soft copies of the Register of Directors and Key 

Managerial Personnel and their shareholding 

maintained under Section 170 of the Companies 

Act 2013 and Register of Contracts or 

arrangements in which Directors are interested 

maintained under section 189 of Companies Act 

2013 and the document referred to in the notice 

of the AGM will be available for inspection by 

the Members during the AGM. 

http://www.ennutrica.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
http://www.ennutrica.com/
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16. Relevant documents referred to in the 

accompanying Notice and the Statement is open 

for inspection by the members at the Registered 

Office of the Company on all working days 

during business hours up to the date of the 

Meeting. 
 

17. Members holding shares in electronic form are 

requested to intimate immediately any change in 

their address, bank mandates and other details to 

their Depository Participants with whom they 

are maintaining their demat accounts. Members 

holding shares in physical form are requested to 

advise any change in their address or bank 

mandates immediately to the Company / MUFG 

Intime India Private Limited (RTA). 

18. The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(SEBI) has mandated the submission of 

Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every 

participant in securities market. Members 

holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, 

requested to submit their PAN to their 

Depository Participants with whom they are 

maintaining their demat accounts. Members 

holding shares in physical form can submit their 

PAN to the Company / MUFG Intime India 

Private Limited (RTA), SURYA 35, May 

Flower Avenue, Behind Senthil Nagar, 

Sowripalayam Road, Coimbatore - 641028 

Email id: coimbatore@in.mpms.mufg.com.  

19. Members holding shares in single name and 

physical form are advised to make nomination in 

respect of their shareholding in the Company. 

The nomination form can be requested from the 

Company.  

20. Non – Resident Indian Members are requested to 

inform MUFG Intime, immediately of:  
 

a) Change in their residential status on 

return to India for permanent 

settlement;  

b) Particulars of their bank account 

maintained in India with complete 

name, branch, account type, account 

number and address of the bank with 

pin code number, if not furnished 

earlier.  

 

21. Members, who have not registered their e-mail 

addresses so far, are requested to register their e-

mail address for receiving all communications 

including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. 

from the Company electronically.  

 

22. Registration of email ID and Bank Account 

details: In case the shareholder's email ID is 

already registered with the Company / its 

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent "RTA" / 

Depositories, log in details for e-voting are being 

sent on the registered email address. In case the 

shareholder has not registered his / her / their 

email address with the Company / its RTA 

/Depositories and / or not updated the Bank 

Account mandate, the following instructions are 

to be followed:  

i. Kindly log in to the website of our 

RTA, MUFG Intime India Private Ltd., 

(https://in.mpms.mufg.com/) under 

Investor Services > Email/Bank detail 

Registration - fill in the details and 

upload the required documents and 

submit. OR  

ii. In the case of Shares held in Demat 

mode: The shareholder may please 

contact the Depository Participant 

("DP") and register the email address 

and bank account details in the demat 

account as per the process followed 

and advised by the DP. 

23. SEBI vide its Notification No. SEBI/LAD-

NRO/GN/2018/24 dated 8th June, 2018 & 

Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/49 

dated 30th November, 2018 amended 

Regulation 40 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 

which provides that from 1st April, 2019 transfer 

of securities would not be processed unless the 

securities are held in the dematerialized form 

with a depository. In view of the same, now the 

shares cannot be transferred in the physical 

mode. Members holding shares in physical form 

are therefore requested to dematerialize their 

holdings immediately. However, members can 

continue to make request for transmission or 

transposition of securities held in physical form. 

 

 

mailto:coimbatore@linkintime.co.in
https://in.mpms.mufg.com/
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24. The Chairman shall, at the annual general 

meeting, at the end of discussion on the 

resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow 

e-voting for all those members who are present 

at the annual general meeting by electronic 

means but have not cast their vote by availing the 

remote e-voting facility. 

 

25. The members who have cast their vote by remote 

e-voting may attend the meeting but shall not be 

entitled to cast their vote again. 

26. Members are requested to address all 

correspondence to the Registrar and Share 

Transfer Agents and/or to the Company at the 

below given address:  

a) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA):   

M/s. MUFG INTIME INDIA PRIVATE 

LIMITED,  

Surya 35, Mayflower Avenue,  

Behind Senthil Nagar,  

Sowripalayam Road,  

Coimbatore – 641028.  

Phone: 0422-2314792  

Email: coimbatore@in.mpms.mufg.com  

b) Company’s Contact Details:   

M/s. DINDIGUL FARM PRODUCT LIMITED,  

CIN: L15200TZ2010PLC016407,  

No. 2/52-3, Pillaiyarnatham,  

Pithalaipatty Post, Dindigul – 624 002.  

Phone: +91-44-22502146  

Email: info@ennutrica.com  

Website: www.ennutrica.com 

AGM through VC/OAVM: 

➢ Facility for joining the Annual General Meeting 

(AGM) through VC/OAVM shall open 30 

minutes before the time scheduled for the AGM 

and will be available to the Members on first 

come first serve basis. 

➢ The Members can log in and join 30 (thirty) 

minutes prior to the scheduled time of the 

meeting and window for joining shall be kept 

open till the expiry of 15 (fifteen) minutes after 

the scheduled time. 

➢ Members who would like to express any views, 

ask questions or queries, during the AGM may 

do so in advance by sending in writing their 

views or questions, as may be, along with their 

name, DP ID and Client ID number/folio 

number, email id and mobile number, to reach 

the Company’s email address at  

 

 

 

info@ennutrica.com latest by, 21th September, 

2025 by 5:00 P.M. 

➢ When a pre-registered speaker is invited to 

speak at the AGM, his/her questions already 

emailed in advance but he / she does not 

respond, the turn will go to the next pre-

registered speaker to raise his/her questions. 

Accordingly, all speakers are requested to get 

connected to a device with a video/ camera 

along with stable internet speed. 

➢ The Company reserves the right to restrict the 

number of questions / speakers as appropriate, 

for smooth conduct of the AGM. 

➢ Members will be able to attend the AGM 

through Video Conferencing / Other Audio-

Visual Means provided by Link Intime India Pvt 

Ltd at https://instameet@in.mpms.mufg.com by 

registering their details as under:  

• Open the internet browser and launch the 

URL for InstaMeet 

https://instameet@in.mpms.mufg.com and 

register with your following details:  

• DP ID / Client ID or Beneficiary ID or 

Folio No.: Enter your 16-digit DP ID / 

Client ID or Beneficiary ID or Folio 

Number registered with the Company  

• PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent 

Account Number (PAN) (members who 

have not updated their PAN with the 

depository participant or company shall 

use the sequence number provided to you, 

if applicable).  

• Enter your Mobile No.  

• Enter your Email ID, as recorded with your 

DP / company  

Click "Go to Meeting" by selecting the Company’s 

AGM. In case the shareholders/members have any 

queries or issues regarding participation at the AGM 

through video conferencing, you can write an email to 

instameet@in.mpms.mufg.com or call at: Tel: (022-

49186175).  

By the order of the Board of Directors 

Dindigul Farm Product Limited 

Sd/- 

Mr. Gurunathan Uma Kanth Narayanan 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

M. No. ACS10686 

Date: August 30, 2025 

mailto:coimbatore@linkintime.co.in
mailto:info@ennutrica.com
http://www.ennutrica.com/
mailto:info@ennutrica.com
https://instameet.linkintime.co.in/
https://instameet.linkintime.co.in/
mailto:instameet@linkintime.co.in
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In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July 11, 2023, Individual shareholders holding securities 

in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.  

 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id correctly in their demat accounts to access remote e-Voting 

facility.  

 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode: 

 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL 

 
METHOD 1 - NSDL IDeAS facility  

 

Shareholders registered for IDeAS facility:  

 

a) Visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com and click on “Beneficial Owner” icon under “IDeAS Login Section”. 

b) Click on “Beneficial Owner” icon under “IDeAS Login Section”. 

c) Post successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services section. Click on “Access 

to e-Voting” under e-Voting services.  

d) Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote 

website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.  

 

Shareholders not registered for IDeAS facility:  

 

a) To register, visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com and select  “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click on 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

b) Enter 8-character DP ID, 8-digit Client ID, Mobile no, Verification code & click on “Submit”. 

c) Enter the last 4 digits of your bank account / generate ‘OTP’ 

d) Post successful registration, user will be provided with Login ID and password. Follow steps given above in points (a-d).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

METHOD 2 - NSDL e-voting website 

 

a) Visit URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com   

b) Click on the “Login” tab available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

c) Enter User ID (i.e., your 16-digit demat account no. held with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on 

the screen. 

d) Post successful authentication, you will be re-directed to NSDL depository website wherein you will be able to see e-Voting 

services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services. 

e) Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote 

website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

 

METHOD 3 - NSDL OTP based login 

 

a) Visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp  

b) Enter your 8 - character DP ID, 8 - digit Client Id, PAN, Verification code and generate OTP.  

c) Enter the OTP received on your registered email ID/ mobile number and click on login.  

d) Post successful authentication, you will be re-directed to NSDL depository website wherein you will be able to see e-Voting 

services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services.  

e) Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote 

website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

 
 

 

REMOTE EVOTING INSTRUCTIONS: 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp/
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp
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Individual Shareholders registered with CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility 

 
METHOD 1 - CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility: 

 

Shareholders registered for Easi/ Easiest facility: 

 

a) Visit URL: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Home/Login or www.cdslindia.com & click on 

New System Myeasi Tab. 

b) Enter existing username, Password & click on “Login”. 

c) Post successful authentication, user will be able to see e-voting option. The evoting option will have links of e-voting service 

providers i.e., MUFG InTime. Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you 

will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

 

Shareholders not registered for Easi/ Easiest facility:  

 

a) To register, visit URL: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration / 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiestRegistration 

b) Proceed with updating the required fields for registration.  

c) Post successful registration, user will be provided username and password. Follow steps given above in points (a-c). 

 

METHOD 2 - CDSL e-voting page 

 

a) Visit URL: https://www.cdslindia.com 

b) Go to e-voting tab.  

c) Enter 16-digit Demat Account Number (BO ID) and PAN No. and click on “Submit”. 

d) System will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile and Email as recorded in Demat Account  

e) Post successful authentication, user will be able to see e-voting option. The evoting option will have links of e-voting service 

providers i.e., MUFG InTime. Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you 

will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with Depository Participant 

 

Individual shareholders can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your depository participant 

registered with NSDL / CDSL for e-voting facility.  

 

a) Login to DP website 

b) After Successful login, user shall navigate through “e-voting” option.   

c) Click on e-voting option, user will be redirected to NSDL / CDSL Depository website after successful authentication, 

wherein user can see e-voting feature. 

d) Post successful authentication, click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you 

will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

 

Login method for shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode. 

 

Shareholders holding shares in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode as on the cut-off 

date for e-voting may register and vote on InstaVote as under: 

 

STEP 1: LOGIN / SIGNUP to InstaVote 

 

Shareholders registered for INSTAVOTE facility: 

 

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in & click on “Login” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab. 

 

 

 

 

 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Home/Login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiestRegistration
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
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b) Enter details as under: 

1. User ID: Enter User ID 

2. Password: Enter existing Password 

3. Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code 

4. Click “Submit”.  

(Home page of e-voting will open. Follow the 

process given under "Steps to cast vote for 

Resolutions”) 

 

Shareholders not registered for INSTAVOTE facility: 

 

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in & click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab & register with details as 

under:  

1. User ID: Enter User ID 

2. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account 

Number (PAN) (Shareholders who have not 

updated their PAN with the Depository 

Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the 

sequence number provided to you, if 

applicable.  

3. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with your DP/Company - in 

DD/MM/YYYY format)  

4. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with your DP/Company. 

o Shareholders holding shares in NSDL form, shall provide ‘D’ above 

o Shareholders holding shares in physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, shall provide their Folio number 

in ‘D’ above 

5. Set the password of your choice.  

(The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special Character (!#$&*), at least one numeral, at 

least one alphabet and at least one capital letter).  

6. Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code. 

7. Click “Submit” (You have now registered on InstaVote).  

Post successful registration, click on “Login” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab & follow steps given above in points (a-

b). 

 

STEP 2: Steps to cast vote for Resolutions through InstaVote 

 

A. Post successful authentication and redirection to InstaVote inbox page, you will be able to see the “Notification for e-voting”.  

B. Select ‘View’ icon. E-voting page will appear.  

C. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to view 

the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link).  

D. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’.  

E. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click on 

‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote.  

 

NOTE: Shareholders may click on “Vote as per Proxy Advisor’s Recommendation” option and view proxy advisor 

recommendations for each resolution before casting vote. “Vote as per Proxy Advisor’s Recommendation” option provides access 

to expert insights during the e-Voting process. Shareholders may modify their vote before final submission. 

 

Once you cast your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change it subsequently. 

 

Guidelines for Institutional shareholders (“Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund”) 

 

STEP 1 – Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund Registration 

 

A. Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in    

B. Click on “Sign Up” under “Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund”  

C. Fill up your entity details and submit the form.  

 

https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
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D. A declaration form and organization ID is generated and sent to the Primary contact person email ID (which is filled at the 

time of sign up). The said form is to be signed by the Authorised Signatory, Director, Company Secretary of the entity & 

stamped and sent to insta.vote@linkintime.co.in.   

E. Thereafter, Login credentials (User ID; Organisation ID; Password) is sent to Primary contact person’s email ID. (You have 

now registered on InstaVote) 
 

 

STEP 2 – Investor Mapping  
 

A. Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and login with InstaVote Login credentials.  

B. Click on “Investor Mapping” tab under the Menu Section  

C. Map the Investor with the following details:  

 

1) ‘Investor ID’ – Investor ID for NSDL demat account is 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID i.e., 

IN00000012345678; Investor ID for CDSL demat account is 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 

2) ‘Investor’s Name - Enter Investor’s Name as updated with DP.  

3) ‘Investor PAN’ - Enter your 10-digit PAN.  

4) ‘Power of Attorney’ - Attach Board resolution or Power of Attorney.  
 

NOTE: File Name for the Board resolution/ Power of Attorney shall be – DP ID and Client ID or 16 Digit Beneficiary 

ID. 

Further, Custodians and Mutual Funds shall also upload specimen signatures.  

D. Click on Submit button. (The investor is now mapped with the Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund Entity). The same 

can be viewed under the “Report Section”.   

 

STEP 3 – Steps to cast vote for Resolutions through InstaVote 
 

The corporate shareholder can vote by two methods, during the remote e-voting period.  
 

METHOD 1 - VOTES ENTRY  

 

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and login with InstaVote Login credentials.  

b) Click on “Votes Entry” tab under the Menu section.  

c) Enter the “Event No.” for which you want to cast vote.  

Event No. can be viewed on the home page of InstaVote under “On-going Events”.   

d) Enter “16-digit Demat Account No.”. 

e) Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to view 

the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link). After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, 

click on ‘Submit’.  

f) A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click on 

‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote.  

(Once you cast your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change it subsequently). 

 

METHOD 2 - VOTES UPLOAD 

 

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and login with InstaVote Login credentials. 

b) After successful login, you will see “Notification for e-voting”.    

c) Select “View” icon for “Company’s Name / Event number”.  

d) E-voting page will appear.  

e) Download sample vote file from “Download Sample Vote File” tab.  

f) Cast your vote by selecting your desired option 'Favour / Against' in the sample vote file and upload the same under “Upload 

Vote File” option.  

g) Click on ‘Submit’. ‘Data uploaded successfully’ message will be displayed.  

(Once you cast your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change it subsequently). 
 

 

 

Helpdesk: 
 

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding  

securities in demat mode: 
 

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode facing any 

technical issue in login may contact INSTAVOTE helpdesk by sending a request at enotices@in.mpms.mufg.com or contact on: 

- Tel: 022 – 4918 6000. 

mailto:insta.vote@linkintime.co.in
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
mailto:enotices@in.mpms.mufg.com
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Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode: 

 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the respective helpdesk for any technical issues related to 

login through Depository i.e., NSDL and CDSL. 

 
Login type  Helpdesk details  

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with NSDL  

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 

sending request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at: 022 - 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with CDSL  

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 

sending request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 

1800 22 55 33  

 

Forgot Password: 

 

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode: 

 

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode have forgotten 

the USER ID [Login ID] or Password or both then the shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option available on: 

https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 

 

▪ Click on “Login” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab. 

▪ Click “forgot password?”  

▪ Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA).  

▪ Click on “SUBMIT”. 

 

In case Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund has forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or Password or both then the shareholder 

can use the “Forgot Password” option available on: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 

▪ Click on ‘Login’ under “Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund” tab  

▪ Click “forgot password?”  

▪ Enter User ID, Organization ID and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA).  

▪ Click on “SUBMIT”. 

 

In case shareholders have a valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail address. Shareholders can 

set the password of his/her choice by providing information about the particulars of the Security Question and Answer, PAN, 

DOB/DOI etc. The password should contain a minimum of 8 characters, at least one special character (!#$&*), at least one 

numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter. 

 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has forgotten the password:  
 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode have forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or Password or both, then the 

Shareholders are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at above mentioned depository/ depository 

participants website. 

 

General Instructions - Shareholders 
 

❖ It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password 

confidential.  

❖ For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on the resolutions contained 

in this Notice. 

❖ During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have voted on the resolution(s) for a 

particular “Event”. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in/
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In terms of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) General Circular No. 09/2024 dated 19.09.2024, the 

Companies can conduct their AGMs/ EGMs on or before 30 September 2025 by means of Video 

Conference (VC) or other audio-visual means (OAVM).  

 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id correctly in their demat accounts to access InstaMeet facility.  

 

Login method for shareholders to attend the General Meeting through InstaMeet: 

 

b) Visit URL: https://instameet.in.mpms.mufg.com & click on “Login”.  

 

c) Select the “Company Name” and register with your following details:  

 

d) Select Check Box - Demat Account No. / Folio No. / PAN 

 

• Shareholders holding shares in NSDL/ CDSL demat account shall select check box - Demat Account No. 

and enter the 16-digit demat account number. 

• Shareholders holding shares in physical form shall select check box – Folio No. and enter the Folio Number 

registered with the company.  

• Shareholders shall select check box – PAN and enter 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN). 

Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use 

the sequence number provided by MUFG Intime, if applicable.  

• Mobile No: Mobile No. as updated with DP is displayed automatically. Shareholders who have not 

updated their Mobile No with the DP shall enter the mobile no. 

• Email ID: Email Id as updated with DP is displayed automatically. Shareholders who have not updated 

their Mobile No with the DP shall enter the mobile no. 

 

e) Click “Go to Meeting”  

You are now registered for InstaMeet, and your attendance is marked for the meeting. 

 

Instructions for shareholders to Speak during the General Meeting through InstaMeet: 

 

a) Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register their request with the company.  

b) Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision made by the company.  

c) Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the meeting. Please remember 

speaking serial number and start your conversation with panellist by switching on video mode and audio of your 

device. 

d) Other shareholder who has not registered as “Speaker Shareholder” may still ask questions to the panellist via 

active chat-board during the meeting. 

 

*Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management will 

announce the name and serial number for speaking. 

 

Instructions for Shareholders to Vote during the General Meeting through InstaMeet: 

 

Once the electronic voting is activated during the meeting, shareholders who have not exercised their vote 

through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as under: 

  

a) On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote” 

 

INSTAMEET VC INSTRUCTIONS: 

https://instameet.in.mpms.mufg.com/
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b) Enter your 16-digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/ 

registered email Id) received during registration for InstaMEET  

c) Click on 'Submit'. 

d) After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the option “Favour/ 

Against” for voting.  

e) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number of shares 

(which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under ‘Favour/Against'. 

f) After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click on 

“Save”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else to 

change your vote, click on “Back” and accordingly modify your vote. Once you confirm your vote on the 

resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote subsequently. 

 

Note:  

Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the General Meeting through InstaMeet facility and have not casted 

their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible 

to vote through e-Voting facility during the meeting.  

 

Shareholders/ Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting prior to the General Meeting will be eligible to 

attend/ participate in the General Meeting through InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again during 

the meeting.  

 

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through broadband 

for better experience. 

 

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to 

avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

 

Please note that Shareholders/ Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops connecting 

via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network.  It is therefore recommended 

to use stable Wi-FI or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 

Helpdesk: 

 

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact INSTAMEET helpdesk by sending a request at 

instameet@in.mpms.mufg.com or contact on: - Tel: 022 – 4918 6000 / 4918 6175. 

 

 
  

mailto:instameet@in.mpms.mufg.com
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Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Speak 

during the Annual General Meeting through 

InstaMeet: 

 

1. Shareholders who would like to speak during the 

meeting must register their request with the company.  

2. Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first 

basis depending upon the provision made by the client.  

3. Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” 

once they mark attendance for the meeting. 

4. Other shareholder may ask questions to the panellist, 

via active chat-board during the meeting. 

5. Please remember speaking serial number and start your 

conversation with panellist by switching on video mode 

and audio of your device. 
 

Shareholders are requested to speak only when 

moderator of the meeting / management will announce 

the name and serial number for speaking. 
 

Note:  

Those shareholders/members who have registered 

themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their 

views/ask questions during the meeting. The Company 

reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers 

depending on the availability of time for the Annual General 

Meeting.  

Shareholders / Members should allow to use camera and are 

required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 

MBPS download stream) to avoid any disturbance during 

the meeting. 
 

Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Vote 

during the Annual General Meeting through 

InstaMeet: 
[[ 

Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer 

during the meeting, shareholders/ members who have not 

exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can cast 

the vote as under: 

 On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-

Voting “Cast your vote” 

1. Enter your 16-digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. 

and OTP (received on the registered mobile number 

/ registered email Id) received during registration for 

InstaMEET and click on 'Submit'.  
 

2. After successful login, you will see “Resolution 

Description” and against the same the option 

“Favour / Against” for voting.  

3. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e., 

“Favour / Against” as desired. Enter the number of  

 

shares (which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-

off date under ‘Favour / Against'. 

4. After selecting the appropriate option i.e., Favour / 

Against as desired and you have decided to vote, 

click on “Save”. A confirmation box will be 

displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on 

“Confirm”, else to change your vote, click on 

“Back” and accordingly modify your vote.  

5. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you 

will not be allowed to modify or change your vote 

subsequently. 
 

Note:  

Shareholders / Members, who will be present in the 

Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet facility and 

have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through 

remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing 

so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting facility 

during the meeting.  
 

Shareholders / Members who have voted through Remote e-

Voting prior to the Annual General Meeting will be eligible 

to attend/ participate in the Annual General Meeting through 

InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again 

during the meeting.  
 

The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to 

their shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the 

company as on the cut-off date (record date) of September 

19, 2025.  
 

Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, the 

Member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. 

Further, the Members who have cast their vote by remote e-

voting shall not vote by e-voting conducted during the 

Meeting 
 

Shareholders / Members are encouraged to join the 

Meeting through Tablets / Laptops connected through 

broadband for better experience. 
[ 

Shareholders / Members are required to use Internet with 

a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to 

avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 
 

Please note that Shareholders/Members connecting from 

Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops connecting 

via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio / Visual loss due 

to fluctuation in their network.  It is therefore recommended 

to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to mitigate any kind 

of aforesaid glitches. 
 

In case shareholders/ members have any queries 

regarding login/ e-voting, they may send an email to 

instameet@in.mpms.mufg.com or contact on: - Tel: 022-

49186175.  

mailto:instameet@linkintime.co.in
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 

Statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies act, 

2013 as required by section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 

2013 (“Act") and such other applicable rules (if any), 

including any statutory modification(s) thereof 

The following statement sets out all material facts 

relating to the Special Business mentioned in the 

accompanying Notice and shall be taken as forming part 

of it. 
 

ITEM NO. 4: 
 

TO APPROVE MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 

TRANSACTION(S) BETWEEN THE COMPANY 

AND A R DAIRY FOOD PRIVATE LIMITED: 

A R Dairy Food Private Limited is involved in 

Production of Milk and Milk Products. The Company 

purchase their products and services from A R Dairy 

Food Private Limited, if required.  

The provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 

as amended by the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) 

Regulations, 2021, effective April 01, 2022, 

mandates prior approval of members by means of 

an ordinary resolution for all material related 

party transactions and subsequent material 

modifications as defined by the audit committee, 

even if such transactions are in the ordinary 

course of business of the concerned company and 

at an arm’s length basis. As per the Related Party 

Transaction policy of the Company, a transaction 

with a related party shall be considered as 

material if the transaction(s) to be entered into, 

either individually or taken together with 

previous transactions during a financial year, 

whether directly and/or through its 

subsidiary(ies), exceed(s) ₹  250 Crores, or 10% 

of the annual consolidated turnover as per the last 

audited financial statements of the listed entity, 

whichever is lower.  

The Company proposes to enter into certain 

related party transaction(s) as mentioned below, 

on mutually agreed terms and conditions, and the 

aggregate of such transaction(s), are expected to 

cross the applicable materiality thresholds as  

 

mentioned above. Accordingly, as per the SEBI 

Listing Regulations, prior approval of the 

Members is being sought for all such 

arrangements / transactions proposed to be 

undertaken by the Company. All the said 

transactions shall be in the ordinary course of 

business of the Company and on an arm’s length 

basis.  

The Audit Committee has, on the basis of 

relevant details provided by the management, as 

required by the law, at its meeting held on 

29/08/2025, reviewed and approved the said 

transaction(s), subject to approval of the 

Members, while noting that such transaction shall 

be on arms’ length basis and in the ordinary 

course of business of the Company. 

Based on the recommendation of the Audit 

Committee, the Board recommends the Ordinary 

Resolution(s) set forth at Item No. 4 of the Notice 

for approval by the Members.  

As per the SEBI Listing Regulations, all related 

parties of the Company, whether or not a party to 

the proposed transaction(s), shall abstain from 

voting on the said resolution(s).   

Mr Raju Rajasekaran and their relatives are 

deemed to be concerned or interested in 

resolutions, as set out in Item no. 4 of this Notice.   

None of the other Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel of the Company and their respective 

relatives, are in any way, concerned or interested, 

financially or otherwise, except to the extent of 

their shareholding in the Company, if any, in the 

proposed resolutions, as set out in Item no. 4 of 

this Notice.  

The details of transactions as required under 

Regulation 23(4) of the Listing Regulations read 

with Section III-B of the SEBI Master Circular 

bearing reference no. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/0155 dated 

November 11, 2024 (“SEBI Master Circular”) are 

set forth below:  
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S. 

No 
Particulars Remarks 

1. Name of the Related Party A R Dairy Food Private Limited 

2. 
Name of the Director or KMP who is 

related 
Raju Rajasekaran – Managing Director 

3. Nature of Relationship Group Company  

4. 

Nature, material terms, monetary value 

and particulars of the contract or 

arrangement 

For Milk & Milk Products and Dairy Processing services, on 

continuous basis. Monetary value of proposed aggregate 

transactions of Rs. 50 Crores (Rupees Sixty Crores only) for 

each financial year (excluding duties and taxes) for a period of 

5 financial years from 2025-26 to 2029-30. 

5. Justification for proposed transaction     

Cost effective and assured supply of Milk & Milk Products 

and Other Dairy related Services and other allied services of 

desired quality is a key requirement for the Company. So, we 

are making arrangements with A R Dairy Private Limited. 

6. 

Where the transaction relates to any 

loans, inter-corporate deposits, 

advances or investments made or given 

by the listed entity or its subsidiary. 

Details of the source of funds in 

connection with the proposed 

Transaction 

1. Internal cash 

Accruals 

Where any financial indebtedness is 

incurred to make or give loans, inter 

corporate deposits, advances 

or investments 

NA 

The purpose for which the funds will 

be utilized by the ultimate beneficiary 

of such funds pursuant to the RPT 

NA 

7. 

The percentage of the listed entity’s 

annual turnover, for the immediately 

preceding financial year, that is 

represented by the value of the 

proposed transaction  

82% of Annual Turnover of the Company 

8. 

Any other information relevant or 

important for the members to take a 

decision on the proposed resolution 

All the transactions entered between Dindigul Farm Product 

Limited and A R Dairy Food Private Limited are at arm’s 

length basis and in the ordinary course of business.  
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ITEM NO. 5: 

TO APPROVE MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 

TRANSACTION(S) BETWEEN THE COMPANY 

AND INDRAYANI BIOTECH LIMITED, 

HOLDING COMPANY: 

Indrayani Biotech Limited is involved in the field of 

Food and Hospitality, Dairy, Healthcare & Pharma, 

Engineering, Biotech, Agriculture and Infrastructure. 

The Company purchase their products and services from 

Indrayani Biotech Limited, if required.  

The provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 

as amended by the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) 

Regulations, 2021, effective April 01, 2022, 

mandates prior approval of members by means of 

an ordinary resolution for all material related 

party transactions and subsequent material 

modifications as defined by the audit committee, 

even if such transactions are in the ordinary 

course of business of the concerned company and 

at an arm’s length basis. As per the Related Party 

Transaction policy of the Company, a transaction 

with a related party shall be considered as 

material if the transaction(s) to be entered into, 

either individually or taken together with 

previous transactions during a financial year, 

whether directly and/or through its 

subsidiary(ies), exceed(s) ₹  250 Crores, or 10% 

of the annual consolidated turnover as per the last 

audited financial statements of the listed entity, 

whichever is lower.  

The Company proposes to enter into certain 

related party transaction(s) as mentioned below, 

on mutually agreed terms and conditions, and the 

aggregate of such transaction(s), are expected to 

cross the applicable materiality thresholds as 

mentioned above. Accordingly, as per the SEBI 

Listing Regulations, prior approval of the 

Members is being sought for all such 

arrangements / transactions proposed to be 

undertaken by the Company. All the said 

transactions shall be in the ordinary course of 

business of the Company and on an arm’s length 

basis.  

The Audit Committee has, on the basis of 

relevant details provided by the management, as 

required by the law, at its meeting held on 

29/08/2025, reviewed and approved the said 

transaction(s), subject to approval of the 

Members, while noting that such transaction shall 

be on arms’ length basis and in the ordinary 

course of business of the Company. 

Based on the recommendation of the Audit 

Committee, the Board recommends the Ordinary 

Resolution(s) set forth at Item No. 5 of the Notice 

for approval by the Members.  

As per the SEBI Listing Regulations, all related 

parties of the Company, whether or not a party to 

the proposed transaction(s), shall abstain from 

voting on the said resolution(s).   

Mr Ravi Rajappan and their relatives are deemed 

to be concerned or interested in resolutions, as set 

out in Item no. 5 of this Notice.   

None of the other Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel of the Company and their respective 

relatives, are in any way, concerned or interested, 

financially or otherwise, except to the extent of 

their shareholding in the Company, if any, in the 

proposed resolutions, as set out in Item no. 5 of 

this Notice.  

 

The details of transactions as required under Regulation 

23(4) of the Listing Regulations read with Section III-B 

of the SEBI Master Circular bearing reference no. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/0155 dated November 11, 

2024 (“SEBI Master Circular”) are set forth below: 
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

Dindigul Farm Product Limited 

 

Sd/- 

Mr. Gurunathan Uma Kanth Narayanan 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

M. No. ACS10686 

Date: August 30, 2025 

  

S. 

No 
Particulars Remarks 

1. Name of the Related Party Indrayani Biotech Limited 

2. 
Name of the Director or KMP 

who is related 

Rajappan Ravi - Director of One of the Subsidiary Company of 

Indrayani Biotech Limited 

3. Nature of Relationship Holding Company 

4. 

Nature, material terms, monetary 

value and particulars of the 

contract or arrangement 

For Sale of products, providing inter corporate advance on a 

continuous basis. Monetary value of proposed aggregate 

transactions during financial year 2024-25 is expected to be upto 

Rs. 50 crores 

5. 
Justification for proposed 

transaction     

Holding Company of Dindigul Farm Product Limited. So, we are 

making arrangements with Indrayani Biotech Limited. 

6. 

Where the transaction relates to 

any loans, inter-corporate 

deposits, advances or investments 

made or given by the listed entity 

or its subsidiary. 

Details of the source of funds in 

connection with the proposed 

Transaction 

1. Internal cash 

Accruals 

Where any financial indebtedness is 

incurred to make or give loans, inter 

corporate deposits, advances 

or investments 

NA 

The purpose for which the funds will 

be utilized by the ultimate beneficiary 

of such funds pursuant to the RPT 

NA 

7. 

The percentage of the listed 

entity’s annual turnover, for the 

immediately preceding financial 

year, that is represented by the 

value of the proposed transaction  

82% of Annual Turnover of the Company 

8. 

Any other information relevant or 

important for the members to take 

a decision on the proposed 

resolution 

All the transactions entered between Dindigul Farm Product 

Limited and Indrayani Biotech Limited are at arm’s length basis 

and in the ordinary course of business.  
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Additional information pursuant to the Secretarial Standards - 2 on General Meetings and SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015/Explanatory Statement in respect of the Ordinary 

Businesses pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013: 

Item Nos. 2 & 3 

PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS BEING APPOINTED/RE-APPOINTED 

Name of the Director Mrs. Rajadharshini Rajasekaran Mr. Ravi Rajappan 

Director Identification 

Number (DIN) 
03161629 01969263 

Age 41 Years 69 Years 

Designation/category of the 

Director 
Non-Executive Director 

Non-Executive Non-

Independent Director 

Date of the first 

appointment on the Board 
September 10, 2010 November 18, 2023 

Qualification 

Mrs. Rajadharshini Rajasekaran holds a 

bachelor’s degree in B.Tech Industrial 

Biotechnology from Vivekanandhaa college 

of engineering for women, Tiruchengode 

and a Post –Graduate Diploma in 

Laboratory course in Bio Techniques from 

Institute of Bioinformatics and Applied 

Biotechnology, Bangalore 

Mr. Ravi Rajappan is an 

Electrical and Electronics 

Engineer by Qualification. 

Profile, Experience and 

Expertise in specific 

functional areas 

Worked as a Research Scientist at 

Abexome Biosciences Pvt Limited, 

Bangalore from 2007 to April 2009 in 

Protein Purification. 

• Promoter of Dindigul Farm Product 

Limited from 2010. 

• Chief Quality officer at A R Dairy 

Food Private Limited from 2009 

Has 40 Years Experience in 

Engineering domain covering 

Industrial Boilers, Steel forging 

units and machine shops 

manufacturing equipment for oil 

and gas industries etc. He also 

has vast business development 

experience in Industrial Boilers, 

Solar farms and biogas plants 

using bamboos. He is active in 

areas of renewable energy 

projects in a variety of 

technologies, including wind 

and solar energy, hydro, gas-

based power plants, biofuels and 

energy from waste. 

Shareholding in the 

Company 
14,42,000 Equity Shares Nil 
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Relationship with the other 

Directors 

Daughter of Mr. Raju 

Rajasekaran, Chairman and 

Managing Director of the 

Company. 

Nil 

Terms & conditions of the 

reappointment 

To retire by rotation To retire by rotation 

Directorships held in other 

companies including equity 

listed companies and excluding 

foreign companies as on the date 

of this Notice. 

Nellai Farm Product Private 

Limited 

1. Kniss Laboratories Private Limited 

2. Matrix Boilers Private Limited 

3. Solarnew Energy Private Limited 

4. IBL Healthcare Limited 

5. IBL Social Foundation 

6. Maxxcare Machine Systems Private 

Limited 

7. Vaasan Medical Center (India) Private 

Limited 

 

Memberships/chairmanships 

of committees of other 

companies (excluding 

foreign companies) as on 

date of this Notice 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Number of meetings of the 

Board attended during the 

financial year 

10 Meetings 10 Meetings 

Details of remuneration paid 

in FY: 2024 - 2025 

Nil Nil 
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To 

The Members of 

Dindigul Farm Product Limited 

The Board of Directors are pleased to present its 

Fifteenth (15th) Annual Report together with an 

audited statement of accounts of the Company for 

the year ended 31st March 2025. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Your company is the first of its kind in the south of 

India manufacturing Dairy Products namely Milk 

Protein Concentrate (MPC), Skimmed Milk Powder 

(SMP), Whey Powder (WP), and Casein, Sodium 

Caseinate, Fat Filled Powder etc. The financial 

results for the year ended 31st March,2025 and the 

corresponding figures for the last year are as under: 

                                                                       [₹ in lakhs] 

Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 

Net Sales 6,109.76 8,374.04 

Other Operating Income 94.81 179.85 

Total Revenue 6,204.57 8,552.89 

Add: Other Income 78.24 2.95 

Less: Total Expenditure 6,258.23 7,257.68 

Profit before Finance Cost, 

Depreciation, Amortisation 

Expenses and Tax 

24.57 1,298.16 

Less: 

i) Finance Cost 

ii) Depreciation and 

Amortisation Expenses 

 

285.72 

186.76 

 

318.69 

213.10 

Profit / (Loss) before Tax 

and exceptional items 
(447.91) 766.37 

Exceptional items - - 

Profit / (Loss) before Tax 

(PBT) 
(447.91) 766.37 

Less: 

i) Current Tax 

ii) Deferred Tax 

 

- 

113.95 

 

- 

(107.66) 

Profit / (Loss) After Tax 

(PAT) 
(561.35) 874.04 

Other Comprehensive Income 

(OCI) 
(2.61) (0.49) 

Total Comprehensive 

Income for the Year 
(563.96) 873.54 

 

 

 

 

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND 

OPERATION 

The Key highlights pertaining to the business 

of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-

25 have been given hereunder: 

❖ The Total Revenue from operations of 

the Company during the financial year 

2024-25 was Rs. 6,282.81 Lakhs 

against the revenue from operations of 

Rs. 8,555.84 Lakhs in the previous 

financial year 2023-24. 

❖ The Net Loss before tax for the year 

under review amounted to Rs. 447.91 

Lakhs, as compared to Net Profit of    

Rs. 766.37 Lakhs in the previous year. 

❖ The Net Loss after tax for the year 

under review amounted to Rs. 561.35 

Lakhs, as compared to Net Profit         

Rs. 874.04 Lakhs in the previous year.  

2. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 

There is no change in nature of business of 

your Company. 

3. DIVIDEND AND RESERVES 

The Board of Directors do not recommend 

dividend to its shareholders for the financial 

year ended on March 31, 2025 keeping in view 

of further requirement of the funds for growth. 

The Company does not propose to transfer any 

amount to reserves. 

4. CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL 

During the Financial Year 2024-2025, your 

Company's authorized share capital remained 

unchanged at Rs. 25,00,00,000 (Rupees 

Twenty-Five Crores Only), divided into 

2,50,00,000 (Two Crore Fifty Lakhs) equity 

shares of a face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten 

Only) each. 

Your Company successfully completed its 

Initial Public Offer (IPO) during the year, 

issuing 64,50,000 (Sixty-Four Lakh Fifty 

Thousand) equity shares. These shares, each 

with a face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten  
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Only), were offered for cash at a price of Rs. 

54/- (Rupees Fifty-Four Only) per share, which 

included a premium of Rs. 44/- (Rupees Forty-

Four Only) per share. 

The Company’s shares are compulsorily 

tradable in electronic form. As on the date of 

this report, entire (i.e. 100%) paid up capital are 

in dematerialized form. 

5. PUBLIC DEPOSITS 

During the FY 2024-25, your Company has 

neither accepted nor has any outstanding 

deposits received from the public within the 

meaning of Section 2(31) and Chapter V of the 

Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 2(1)(c) 

of the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) 

Rules, 2014 and as such there are no such 

overdue deposits outstanding as on 31st March, 

2025. 

6. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

In terms of requirement of section 134 (3) (a) 

read with Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 

2013, the Annual return of the Company has 

been placed on the Company’s website and can 

be accessed on the website of the Company at 

www.ennutrica.com.  

7. MATERIAL CHANGES AND 

COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING 

THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 

COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED 

BETWEEN THE END OF THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY 

TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE 

DATE OF THE REPORT: 

Your Company successfully completed its 

Initial Public Offer (‘IPO) of 64,50,000 

equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each for 

cash price of Rs. 54 per share including a 

premium of Rs. 44 per share aggregating 

to Rs. 34,83,00,000. 

The Equity Shares of Dindigul Farm 

Product Limited have been listed on 

Bombay Stock Exchange with effect from 

June 27, 2024, in the SME segment. 

 

Other than the above, there is no other 

Material Changes and Commitments, 

affecting the financial position of the 

company which have occurred between 

the end of the financial position of the 

company which have occurred between 

the end of the financial year of the 

company of the company to which the 

financial statements relate and the date of 

the report. 

8. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS 

The Board of Directors met 10 (Ten) times 

during the year under review. The gap 

between two board meetings was within 

the time prescribed under the Act. The 

Company, being listed under SME 

segment, the provisions relating to 

Corporate Governance and number of 

memberships in committees are not 

applicable. 

9. DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDNET 

DIRECTORS 

All independent directors have, at the first 

meeting of the Board, furnished 

declarations in accordance with the 

provisions of Section 149(7) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, regarding meeting 

the criteria of independence laid down under 

Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, 

and Regulation 16(b) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. 

10. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, 

GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS 

The Company has not made any loan, 

guarantee as per section 186 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 during the financial year 2024-2025.  

The Company has entered into Energy 

Wheeling Agreement with GK wind farms 

under group captive scheme. As per the CERC, 

companies entering into Energy Wheeling 

Agreement under group captive scheme must 

hold 26% Equity in the generating company. In  
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line with the said requirement, the Company 

has invested Rs. 2.6 Lakhs in G.K. Wind Farm 

11. VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE 

BLOWER POLICY 

Your Company is committed to highest 

standards of ethical, moral and legal business 

conduct. Accordingly, the Board of Directors 

have formulated Vigil Mechanism/Whistle 

Blower Policy which provides a robust 

framework for dealing with genuine concerns 

and grievances of Employees, Directors and 

Senior Executives. Your Company has an 

ethics hotline which can be used by employees, 

Directors, senior executives, suppliers, dealers 

etc. to report any violations to the Code of 

Conduct. Specifically, employees can raise 

concerns regarding any discrimination, 

harassment, victimization, any other unfair 

practice being adopted against them or any 

instances of fraud by or against your Company.  

During financial year 2024-25, no complaints 

were received.  

12. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY 

STATEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, your 

Directors state that: 

a) in the preparation of the Annual Accounts 

for the year ended March 31, 2025, the 

applicable accounting standards have been 

followed and there are no material 

departures from the same; 

b) they have selected such accounting 

policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent so as to give a true 

and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

Company as at March 31, 2025 and of the 

profits of the Company for the year ended on 

that date; 

 c) they have taken proper and sufficient care 

for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of 

the Act, for safeguarding the assets of the  

 

 

Company and for preventing and detecting 

fraud and other irregularities; 

 d) they have prepared the Annual Accounts

 of the Company on a going concern basis; 

 e) they have laid down adequate internal 

financial controls to be followed by the 

Company and that such internal financial 

controls are adequate and operating 

effectively; 

 f) they have devised proper systems to 

ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems are 

adequate and operating effectively. 

13. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

Your Company has laid down adequate 

internal financial controls commensurate with 

the scale, size and nature of the business of the 

Company. The Board has inter alia reviewed 

the adequacy and effectiveness of the 

Company’s internal financial controls relating 

to its financial statements. Your Company has 

adopted necessary policies and procedures for 

ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 

business, including adherence to company’s 

policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, 

the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records and the timely preparation 

of financial information. 

14. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 

CODE 

As per SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulation, 2015 as amended from time to 

time, the Company has adopted a Code of 

Conduct to Regulate, Monitoring & Reporting 

of Trading by Insiders. 

The Company Secretary of the Company as 

Compliance Officer, who is responsible for 

setting forth procedures and implementation of 

the code of conduct for trading in Company’s 

securities. During the FY 2024-25 the 

Company has duly complied with the said  
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code. The Code is displayed on the Company’s 

website at: https://www.ennutrica.com 

Your Company is maintaining Structured 

Digital Database (‘SDD’), the database of 

unpublished price sensitive information 

(UPSI), shared internally and externally, with 

the intent of keeping track as to who all were in 

the know of an UPSI before it became public. 

15. RECONCILIATION OF SHARE 

CAPITAL AUDIT 

In accordance with Regulation 76 of the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 

2018, a Practicing Company Secretary, 

independent of the Company, conducts the 

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit on a 

quarterly basis to reconcile the total share 

capital admitted with NSDL and CDSL and 

held in physical form, with the issued and listed 

capital of the Company. 

The certificate issued by the Practicing 

Company Secretary is submitted to the Stock 

Exchange(s) where the Company's shares are 

listed and is also placed before the Board of 

Directors. 

16. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Company has implemented a 

comprehensive Risk Management Policy 

aimed at periodically assessing potential 

threats and opportunities that may impact the 

achievement of its overall objectives. This 

Policy ensures a structured approach to 

identifying, evaluating, and mitigating risks 

by categorizing them based on their nature, 

causes, potential impacts, and corresponding 

treatment and control measures. 

As part of the Risk Management Policy, the 

relevant parameters for protection of 

environment, safety of operations and health 

of people at work are monitored regularly.  

17. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED 

PARTIES 

All the Related Party Transactions which were 

entered into during the Financial Year 2024-25  

 

were at arm’s length basis and in the ordinary 

course of business. Further, details of material 

related party transactions as required to be 

provided in format of AOC-2 pursuant to 

clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of 

the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 form part of the Annual Report as 

Annexure I  

18. AUDITOR 

a) Statutory Auditors 

M/s Venkatesh & Co, Chartered 

Accountants (Firm Registration Number: 

004636S), were re-appointed as the 

Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 

last Annual General Meeting held on 30th 

September, 2024 for a period of 5 (Five) 

years till the conclusion of the 19th AGM to 

be held in the year 2029 at such 

remuneration plus out of pocket expenses 

and applicable taxes, as may be mutually 

agreed between the Board of Directors of the 

Company and the Auditors. 

b) Secretarial Auditor 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of 

The Companies Act, 2013 and The 

Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed 

Mr S Muthuraju, Company Secretary as 

Secretarial Auditor of the Company who 

have undertaken Secretarial Audit of the 

Company for the FY 2024-25 is annexed 

herewith marked as Annexure II which 

forms part of this report. The Secretarial 

Audit Report does not contain any 

qualification, reservation, adverse remark 

or disclaimer. 

c) Internal Auditor 

The Board appointed M/S VSSR & CO., 

Chartered Accountants (Firm Regn No 

016495S), as the Internal Auditor of the 

Company for the Financial Year 2024-

2025. 

https://www.ennutrica.com/
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19. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

The Company is in compliance of the 

applicable provisions of Secretarial Standards 

issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 

of India. 

20. CORPORATE GOVERANANCE  

As per the Guidelines and direction of the 

SEBI and Stock Exchange accordingly the 

Company has been adhering to the directions 

and guidelines, as required and if applicable on 

the company’s size and type. (Pursuant to 

Regulations 15(2) of SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations 2015, the compliance with 

Corporate Governance provisions as specified 

in regulations 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) and 

(t) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and 

Para C, D and E of Schedule V shall not apply 

to the listed entity which has listed its 

specified securities on BSE under SME 

Platform. Therefore, the Corporate 

Governance Report is not applicable to the 

Company, hence Corporate Governance 

Report do not form part of this Report). 

21. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, 

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 

OUTGO  

The details of Energy Conservation, 

Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange 

Earnings and Outgo as required under section 

134(3)(m) of the Act, read with Rule 8(3) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed 

to this Annual Report as Annexure III  

22. MANAGING DIRECTOR & CFO 

CERTIFICATE 

In accordance with the provisions of 

Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI Listing  

 

 

Regulations, certificate of Managing Director 

and Chief Financial Officer in relation to the 

Financial Statements for the year ended 31  

March 2025, is part of the Annual Report as 

Annexure IV 

23. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND 

ANALYSIS REPORT 

The Management Discussion and Analysis 

Report ("MD&A") as required under clause 34 

of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 has 

been presented in a separate section forming 

part of this Annual Report. 

24. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS & KEY 

MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

Retired by Rotation: 

Pursuant the provisions of Section 152 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereof Mrs. 

Rajadharshini Rajasekaran (DIN: 03161629) 

and Mr Ravi Rajappan (DIN: 01969263), 

Non-Executive Directors, retires by rotation 

at the Annual General Meeting and being 

eligible, offers themselves for re-

appointment. The Board of Directors 

recommends their re-appointment. A brief 

profile of Mrs. Rajadharshini Rajasekaran 

and Mr Ravi Rajappan is provided in the 

accompanying Notice convening the AGM. 

25. BOARD COMMITTEES 

The primary four committees of the Board are 

Audit Committee, Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders' 

Relationship Committee and Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee.  The composition 

of the Committees as of 31st March 2025 

(including the changes effected up to the date 

of this report) and their meeting dates are 

given below: 
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A. AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The Audit Committee is constituted in accordance with the provision of Section 177 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, to function in accordance with terms of reference specified by Board in writing in pursuant of 

sub-section (4) of section 177 of the Act. 

The composition of the Audit Committee and the details of meetings attended by its members are given 

below: 

SL 

NO 
NAME 

DESIGNATION 

IN THE 

COMPANY 

POSITION IN 

THE 

COMMITTEE 

NO OF MEETINGS 

HELD ATTENDED 

1 
Mrs. Bokara Nagarajan 

Padmaja Priyadarshini 

Independent 

Director 
Chairperson 

 

4 

 

4 

2 
Mr Nangavaram 

Mahadevan Ranganathan 

Independent 

Director 
Member 

 

4 

 

4 

3 Mr R Rajasekaran 
Chairman and 

Managing Director 
Member 

 

4 

 

3 

The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company will act as the Secretary of the 

Committee. 

➢ Powers of Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee shall have the following 

powers: 

To investigate any activity within its terms of 

reference; 

To seek information from any employee; 

To obtain outside legal or other professional 

advice; and 

To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant 

expertise, if it considers necessary 

➢ Role of the Audit Committee 

The role of the audit committee shall include the 

following: 

1. Oversight of the company’s financial 

reporting process and the disclosure of its 

financial information to ensure that the 

financial statements are correct, sufficient 

and credible; 

2. Recommendation for appointment, 

remuneration and terms of appointment of 

auditors of the company; 

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors 

for any other services rendered by the 

statutory auditors; 

4. Reviewing, with the management, the 

annual financial statements and auditor's 

report thereon before submission to the 

Board for approval, with particular 

reference to: 

• Matters required to be included in the 

Director’s Responsibility Statement to be 

included in the Board’s report in terms of 

clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 

of the Companies Act, 2013; 

• Changes, if any, in accounting policies 

and practices and reasons for the same; 

• Major accounting entries involving 

estimates based on the exercise of 

judgment by management; 

• Significant adjustments made in the 

financial statements arising out of audit 

findings; 

• Compliance with listing and other legal 

requirements relating to financial 

statements; 

• Disclosure of any related party 

transactions; and 

• Qualifications in the draft audit report. 

 

5. Reviewing, with the management, the 

quarterly financial statements before 

submission to the Board for approval; 

6. Reviewing, with the management, the 

statement of uses / application of funds 

raised through an issue (public issue, 

rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the 

statement of funds utilized for purposes  
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other than those stated in the offer 

document/prospectus/notice and the report 

submitted by the monitoring agency 

monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a 

public or rights issue, and making 

appropriate recommendations to the Board 

to take up steps in this matter; 

7. Monitoring the end use of funds raised 

through public offers and related matters; 

8. Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s 

independence and performance, and 

effectiveness of audit process; 

9. Approval of any subsequent modification 

of transactions of the company with 

related parties; 

Explanation: The term "related party 

transactions" shall have the same meaning 

as provided in Clause 2 (zc) of the SEBI 

Listing Regulations and/or the Accounting 

Standards. 

10. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and 

investments; 

11. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the 

company, wherever it is necessary; 

12. Evaluation of internal financial controls 

and risk management systems; 

13. Reviewing, with the management, 

performance of statutory and internal 

auditors, adequacy of the internal control 

systems; 

14. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit 

function, if any, including the structure of 

the internal audit department, staffing and 

seniority of the official heading the 

department, reporting structure coverage 

and frequency of internal audit; 

15. Discussion with internal auditors of any 

significant findings and follow up there 

on; 

16. Reviewing the findings of any internal 

investigations by the internal auditors into 

matters where there is suspected fraud or 

irregularity or a failure of internal control  

 

systems of a material nature and reporting 

the matter to the Board; 

17. Discussion with statutory auditors before 

the audit commences, about the nature and 

scope of audit as well as post-audit 

discussion to ascertain any area of 

concern; 

 

18. Looking into the reasons for substantial 

defaults in the payment to depositors, 

debenture holders, shareholders (in case of 

non-payment of declared dividends) and 

creditors; 

19. Reviewing the functioning of the whistle 

blower mechanism 

20. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the 

whole-time Finance Director or any other 

person heading the finance function or 

discharging that function) after assessing 

the qualifications, experience and 

background, etc. of the candidate; 

21. Carrying out any other function as is 

mentioned in the terms of reference of the 

Audit Committee; and 

22. Reviewing the utilization of loans and/or 

advances from/investments by the holding 

company in the subsidiary exceeding 

rupees hundred crores or 100% of the asset 

size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower 

including existing 

loans/advances/investments, as may be 

applicable. 

Further, the Audit Committee shall 

mandatorily review the following 

information: 

• Management discussion and analysis of 

financial condition and results of 

operations; 

• Statement of significant related party 

transactions (as defined by the audit 

committee), submitted by management; 

• Management letters / letters of internal 

control weaknesses issued by the 

statutory auditors; 

• Internal audit reports relating to internal 

control weaknesses; and 

• Appointment, removal and terms of 

remuneration of the chief internal auditor 

shall be subject to review by the audit 

committee. 

• Statement of deviations: 

 

• Quarterly statement of deviation(s) 

including report of monitoring agency, if 

applicable, submitted to Stock 

Exchanges(s) in terms of Regulation 

32(1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 
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a) Annual statement of funds 

utilized for purposes other than 

those stated in the offer 

document/prospectus/notice in 

terms of Regulation 32(7) the 

SEBI Listing Regulations. 

 

 

 

As required under the SEBI Listing Regulations, 

the Audit Committee shall meet at least four 

times a year with maximum interval of four 

months between two meetings and the quorum 

for each meeting of the Audit Committee shall 

be two members or one third of the members, 

whichever is greater, provided that there should 

be a minimum of two independent directors 

present. 

 

A. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is constituted in accordance with the provision of Section 

178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The composition of the Committee and the details of meetings attended by its members are given below: 

SL 

NO 
NAME 

DESIGNATION IN 

THE COMPANY 

POSITION IN 

THE 

COMMITTEE 

NO OF MEETINGS 

HELD ATTENDED 

1 
Mrs. Bokara Nagarajan 

Padmaja Priyadarshini 

Independent 

Director 
Chairperson 

 

1 

 

1 

2 
Mr Nangavaram 

Mahadevan Ranganathan 

Independent 

Director 
Member 

 

1 

 

1 

3 Mr Ravi Rajappan  

Non- Executive 

Non-Independent 

Director 

Member 

 

1 

 

1 

• To lay down criteria with regard to 

identifying persons who are qualified to 

become Directors (Executive and Non‐

executive) and persons who may be 

appointed in Key Managerial positions 

and to determine their remuneration; 

• To determine remuneration based on the 

Company’s size and financial position 

and trends and practices on remuneration 

prevailing in peer companies, in the 

industry; 

• To carry out evaluation of the 

performance of Directors, as well as Key 

Managerial Personnel and to provide for 

reward(s) linked directly to their effort, 

performance, dedication and 

achievement relating to the Company’s 

operations and 

• To ensure that the level and composition 

of remuneration is reasonable and  

• sufficient to attract, retain and motivate 

the working potential of all the Directors 

and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of 

the Company; 

• To ensure that the remuneration to 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

(KMP) of the Company involves a 

balance between fixed and incentive pay 

reflecting short and long‐term 

performance objectives appropriate to the 

working of the Company and its goals; 

• To lay down criteria for appointment, 

removal of directors and Key Managerial 

Personnel and evaluation of their 

performance. 

• To ascertain that the relationship of 

remuneration to performance is clear and 

meets appropriate performance 

benchmarks; 
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B. STAKEHOLDER’S RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

The Stakeholder Relationship Committee is constituted in accordance with the provision of Section 178 

(5) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The composition of the Committee and the details of meetings attended by its members are given below: 

SL 

NO 
NAME 

DESIGNATION IN 

THE COMPANY 

POSITION IN 

THE 

COMMITTEE 

NO OF MEETINGS 

HELD ATTENDED 

1 Mr Ravi Rajappan  

Non- Executive 

Non-Independent 

Director 

Chairman 

 

1 

 

1 

2 
Mr Nangavaram 

Mahadevan Ranganathan 

Independent 

Director 
Member 

 

1 

 

1 

3 
Mrs. Bokara Nagarajan 

Padmaja Priyadarshini 

Independent 

Director 
Member 

 

1 

 

 

1 

C. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES COMMITTEE 

As per provision of Section 135 sub-section (1) and other applicable provisions of Companies 

Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the 

Board has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of Directors inter-alia, to 

oversee the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and other related matters as referred by the 

Board of Directors and discharges the roles as prescribed under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 

2013. 

The detailed composition of the members of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee at 

present is given below: 

SL 

NO 
NAME DESIGNATION IN THE COMPANY 

POSITION IN THE 

COMMITTEE 

1 Mr R Rajasekaran Chairman and Managing Director Member 

2 Mrs R Rajadharshini Non-Executive Director Member 

3 
Mr Nangavaram 

Mahadevan Ranganathan 
Non-Executive Independent Director Member 

 

26. COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ 

APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION 

INCLUDING CRITERIA FOR 

DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS, 

POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES, 

INDEPENDENCE OF A DIRECTOR AND 

OTHER MATTERS PROVIDED UNDER 

SUB-SECTION (3) OF SECTION 178 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 178 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee carried out 

evaluation of every director’s performance 

and the Board has carried out formal annual 

evaluation of its own performance and that of 

its Committees and individual directors has 

been made. Further, the evaluation of the 

independent directors was carried out by the 

entire Board, excluding the director being 

evaluated. 

The directors were satisfied with the evaluation 

results, which reflect the overall engagement of 

the Board and its Committees and on the basis 

of the report of the said evaluation, the present  
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term of appointment of independent directors 

shall be continued with the Company. 

27. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, 

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES  

Disclosure as required under Section 197(12) 

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 

5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014 is annexed to this Annual report 

as Annexure V 

28. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL 

HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE 

The Company is committed to providing a safe 

and conducive work environment to all its 

employees and associates. The Company has a 

policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at 

Workplace in place. The Company has 

constituted Internal Complaints Committee as 

per the sexual Harassment of Women & 

workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013. During the year under 

review, no complaint was received under the 

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 

2013. 

29. OTHER DISCLOSURES 

During the financial year under review:- 

a) The Company has not transferred any 

amount to reserves. 

b) There was no issue of equity shares with 

differential rights as to dividend, voting or 

otherwise. 

c) The Company has complied with all 

statutory requirements relating to maternity 

leave under the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, as 

amended.  

d) There was no issue of shares (including 

sweat equity shares) to employees of the 

Company under any scheme.  

e) No significant or material orders were 

passed by the Regulators or Courts or  

 

 

Tribunals which impact the going concern 

status and Company’s operations in future. 

f) The Company does not have any scheme of 

provision of money for the purchase of its own 

shares by employees or by trustees for the 

benefit of employees. 

g) Except as disclosed in this report, there were 

no material changes and commitments which 

occurred after the close of the year till the date 

of this report, which may affect the financial 

position of the Company. 

h) There is no proceeding pending under the 

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

i) There was no instance of one-time settlement 

with any Bank or Financial Institution. 

j) The Company does not have any shares in 

unclaimed suspense demat account. 

30. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Statements in this Report and the Management 

Discussion & Analysis Report describing the 

Company’s objectives, expectations or 

forecasts may be forward-looking within the 

meaning of applicable laws and regulations. 

Actual results may differ from those expressed 

in the statements. 

31. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

Your Directors wish to place on record the 

appreciation to Central Government, State 

Governments and other regulatory bodies / 

authorities, banks, business partners, 

shareholders, medical practitioners and other 

stakeholders for the assistance, co-operation and 

encouragement extended to the Company. Your 

Directors also like to place on record the deep 

sense of appreciation to the employees for their 

contribution and services. 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For Dindigul Farm Product Limited 

Sd/- 

Mr. Gurunathan Uma Kanth Narayanan 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

M. No. ACS10686 

Date: August 30, 2025  
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ANNEXURE – I 

 

Form AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related 

parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms’ 

length transactions under third proviso thereto  

 

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arms’ length basis: 

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended March 31, 2025, 

which were not at arms’ length basis. 

 

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arms’ length basis: 

All contracts, arrangements and transactions entered by the Company with related parties during FY 2024-

25 were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis.  

All applicable related party transactions were presented before the Board. The disclosure on related party 

transactions as per Ind AS-24 has been provided under Note No. 32 of the standalone financial statements. 

 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For Dindigul Farm Product Limited 

Sd/- 

Mr. Gurunathan Uma Kanth Narayanan 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

M. No. ACS10686 

Date: August 30, 2025 
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ANNEXURE - II 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To 

The Members, 

DINDIGUL FARM PRODUCT LIMITED 

2/52-3, Pillaiyarnatham, 

Pithalaipatty, Dindigul – 624002. 

 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. DINDIGUL FARM PRODUCT LIMITED (hereinafter 

called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us reasonable basis for 

evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.  

 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 

and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, 

the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 complied 

with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 

compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. 

 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 

by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the provisions of; 

 

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 

 

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;  

 

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed there under; 

 

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to extent 

of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment;   

 

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) :  

 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 
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b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

1992; 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009; 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 

Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008; 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registration to an Issue and Share Transfers 

Agent) Regulations, 1993; 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; 

 

6. Other Laws applicable to the Company; 

 

1. Employees’ Provident Fund Act, 1952 and misc provisions Act, 1952 

2. Professional Tax Act, 1975 and Rules 

3. Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 

4. Employees State Insurance Act, 1948 

5. Minimum Wages Act, 1948 

6. Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 

7. Shop and Establishment Act, 1948 

8. Labour Welfare Fund Act, 1953 

9. Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 

10. Factories Act, 1948 

11. Industrial Dispute Act, 1947 

12. The Workmen’s Compensation Act, 1923 

13. The Payment of Wages Act, 1936 

14. Competition Act, 2002 

15. Central Excise Act, 1944 

16. Standard Weights & Measures Act 

17. Bureau of Indian Standard (BIS) (Hallmarking) 

18. Income Tax Act, 1961 

19. Finance Act, 1994 

20. Customs Act, 1962 
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clause of the Following; 

 

I. The Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

II. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange and National 

Stock Exchange Limited including the New Listing Agreement under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015. 

 

During the year under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc mentioned above. 

 

We further report that the Board of  Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 

Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. 

 

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review 

were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 

agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 

information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at 

the meeting. 

 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out with requisite majority as recorded 

in the Minutes of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be. 

 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the 

size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 

regulations and guidelines. 

 

Sd/- 

S. MUTHURAJU 

(Practicing Company Secretary) 

Proprietor 

ACS: 8825; CP:   4181 

UDIN: A008825G000458230 

Place: MADURAI 

Date: 27.05.2025 

 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “ANNEXURE - A” and 

forms an integral part of this report. 
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ANNEXURE – A 

TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For the financial year 31st March 2025 

 

To 

The Members, 

DINDIGUL FARM PRODUCT LIMITED 

2/52-3, Pillaiyarnatham, 

Pithalaipatti Post, Dindigul – 624 002. 

 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter; 

 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on or audit. 

 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done 

on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the 

processes and practices, We followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the Company. 

 

4. Where ever required, We have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 

laws, rules, and regulations and happening of events etc. 

 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,  regulations, 

Standards is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to the verification 

of procedures on test basis. 

 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 

of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company. 

 

Sd/- 

S. MUTHURAJU 

(Practicing Company Secretary) 

Proprietor 

ACS: 8825; CP:   4181 

UDIN: A008825G000458230 

 

Place: MADURAI 

Date: 26.05.2025 
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ANNEXURE - III 

 

THE CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO PURSUANT TO  

THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH THE 

COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014  

a) Conservation of Energy: 

i) Energy Conservation steps taken  

The Company has installed Automatic Power factor 

controller, Harmonic filters, variable frequency drivers for 

energy saving. 

The Company installed water management system which 

ensured that, the water separated from milk and milk by 

products is reused in the plant by Effluent treatment plant and 

RO system. 

ii)  Steps taken by the Company for 

utilizing alternate source of energy 

The Company adopting stream recovery system in CIP 

system, which will reduce 15% of consumption of Fuel. 

iii) Capital investment on energy 

conservation equipment 
Nil 

b) Conservation of Energy: 

i) Efforts made in technology 

absorption 

The Company used unique in technology, and evaporators 

and driers installed are suitable multi product processing.  

Automated Casein plant with international standard was 

installed and working in good manner. 

ii) Benefits derived like product 

improvement cost reduction, 

product development, or import 

substitution 

The Company used unique in technology, and evaporators 

and driers installed are suitable multi product processing.  

Automated Casein plant with international standard was 

installed and working in good manner. 

c) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Out Go 

 
31-03-2025 31-03-2024 

Foreign Exchange Earnings 
Rs. 53,72,403/- Rs. 1,12,52,182/- 

Foreign Exchange Outgo 
Rs. 3,79,19,340/- Rs. 17,88,106/- 
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ANNEXURE - IV 

CERTIFICATE OF MANAGING DIRECTOR / CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

[A per Listing Agreement and Regulation 17(8) of Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

To 

The Board of Directors, 

Dindigul Farm Product Limited 

No. 2/52-3, Pillaiyarnatham, Pithalaipatty Post, 

Dindigul – 624 002 

 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

Sub: Compliance Certificate from Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. 

Ref: Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule II of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

In compliance with Regulation 17(8) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we hereby certify that: 

a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of the Company for the 

Financial Year 2024-2025 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact 

or contain statements that might be misleading; 

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and are 

in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed entity 

during the Financial Year 2024-2025 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed entity’s 

code of conduct. 

c)  We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting 

and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the listed entity 

pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, 

deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and 

the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

d) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee that there are: 

1. No significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the Financial 

Year 2024-2025; 

2. No significant changes in accounting policies during the FY 2024-2025 and that the same 

have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 

3. No instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement 

therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the listed 

entity’s internal control system over financial reporting. 

                                                                             Sd/-                                Sd/- 

Date: 07-06-2025   Raju Rajasekaran      Velvizhi Ganesan 

Place: Dindigul                Managing Director               Chief Financial Officer 

     DIN:01789110                                                               
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ANNEXURE - V 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES [PURSUANT TO SECTION 197 SUB-

SECTION 12 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES 

(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014] 

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employees’ remuneration and other details 

in terms of sub-section 12 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(1) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: 

(i) Managerial Personnel Remuneration (including commission and variable pay) to the median 

remuneration of the employees of your Company and percentage of increase in the remuneration 

for the year 2024-25 was as under: 

Name of the Director / 

KMP 
Designation of the Director / KMP 

Ratio of Remuneration 

to the Median 

employees for the FY 

% Increase in 

remuneration 

during the FY 

Mr. R Rajasekaran 
Chairman and Managing 

Director 
10.99 - 

Mrs. Rajadharshini  Non-Executive Director 3.64 - 

Mr. Rajappan Ravi 
Non-Executive Non-

Independent Director 
3.64 

- 

Mr. N M Ranganathan Independent Director 3.31 - 

Mrs. Priyadarshini Independent Woman Director 3.03 - 

Mr. G U K Narayanan Company Secretary 2.80 15.11 % 

Mrs. G Velvizhi Chief Financial Officer 7.85 23.33% 

 

(ii) The percentage increase in median remuneration of employees for the Financial Year 2024-25 

is 2.63%. 
 

(iii) The number of permanent employees of the Company is 107 as on 31st March, 2025. 
 

(iv) Average percentiles increase already made in the salaries of employees in the Financial Year 

2024-25 was 14.10% as compared to average percentile increase in the managerial remuneration 

which was 8.42%. The difference in average percentage increase in salaries of employees and 

managerial remuneration for the Financial Year 2024-25 is 5.11%. 
 

(v) It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the year is as per the Remuneration 

Policy of the Company. 
 

(vi) Information as per Section 197(2) of the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personal) Amendment Rules, 2016 forming 

part of the Director's Report for the year ended 31st March, 2025 is not required to be furnished 

as no employees was employed for Rs.1,02,00,000/- or more per year or Rs.8,50,000/- or more 

per month for any part of the Year. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

Strategic Business Overview for Dindigul Farm Product Limited (EnNutrica) 

Industry Overview: 

The global dairy protein powder market was valued at USD 24.00 billion in 2024 and is expected to reach 

USD 43.77 billion by 2032, growing at a CAGR of 7.80% during the forecast period. The market is driven 

by increasing demand for protein-rich products, growing health and wellness awareness, and rising 

adoption in the food and beverage industry. 

 

 

Global Dairy Protein Powder Market: 

 

➢ Size: $24.00 billion (2024) 

➢ Growth Rate: 7.80% CAGR (2025-2032) 

➢ Drivers: Increasing demand for protein-rich products, growing 

health awareness, and rising consumption of infant formula 

 

 

Source Access: 

https://www.databridgemarketresearch.com/reports/global-milk-protein-

market 

 

             

 

Indian Dairy Protein Powder Market: 

 

➢ Size: INR 38,247.0 Crores (2024) 

➢ Growth Rate: 6.79% CAGR (2025-2030) 

➢ Drivers: Large and growing population, increasing urbanization, 

and rising disposable incomes 

  

 

Source Access:  

https://www.mordorintelligence.com/industry-reports/india-milk-

protein-market 

 

 

Industry Trend: 

The Indian dairy and agricultural sectors are undergoing significant changes, driven by increasing consumer 

demand for premium, sustainable products. The rising health consciousness among consumers is fuelling a 

shift towards high-quality, adulteration-free products. Additionally, government initiatives to support 

farmers with subsidies and technological advancements are expected to enhance productivity and efficiency 

within the sector. The trend towards digitization, including the use of e-commerce platforms for distributing 

milk protein powders, presents new growth opportunities for companies like Dindigul Farm Product 

Limited (EnNutrica). 

 

 

https://www.databridgemarketresearch.com/reports/global-milk-protein-market
https://www.databridgemarketresearch.com/reports/global-milk-protein-market
https://www.mordorintelligence.com/industry-reports/india-milk-protein-market
https://www.mordorintelligence.com/industry-reports/india-milk-protein-market
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Industry Landscape: 

The global dairy industry is experiencing a significant transformation, driven by increasing awareness of 

the health benefits associated with dairy products, particularly milk protein powders. The demand for high-

quality, nutritious products is rising, especially in the segments of infant and adult nutrition. The Indian 

market, in particular, is witnessing a surge in demand for enrichment milk products, driven by a growing 

population, increasing disposable incomes, and heightened health consciousness among consumers. 

EnNutrica is well-positioned to capitalize on these trends, leveraging our expertise in milk protein 

enrichment and our commitment to research and development. The company's expansion into infant milk 

powder production is a strategic move to tap into the growing demand for specialized nutritional products 

for infants, which is a rapidly expanding segment of the market. 

 

Business Overview: 

EnNutrica is a manufacturer and provider of milk protein powder solutions, catering to the nutritional needs 

of children and adults. Our product portfolio includes: 

 

1. Milk Protein Powder: High-quality protein powder for various applications, including food processing, 

pharmaceuticals, and animal feed. Products such as Skimmed Milk Powder, Dairy Whitener, Dairy Tex 

(Milk Protein Concentrate Powder with 50% Protein Content), Formula 7+ (Milk Protein Concentrate 

Powder with 70% Protein Content), Formula 8 (Milk Protein Concentrate Powder with 78% Protein 

Content), Formula 8+ (Milk Protein Concentrate Powder with Min 80% Protein Content), Milk Protein 

Concentrate 85% (Milk Protein Concentrate Powder with Min 85% Protein Content), Acid Casein, Sodium 

Caseinate, WPS 12%, WPA 12%, Fat Filled Powders. 

 

2. Instant Coffee Dairy Whitener: Dindigul Farm Product Limited (EnNutrica) is excited to introduce its 

latest innovative product, "Instant Degree Coffee." This high-quality, ready-to-drink instant coffee dairy 

whitener is designed to cater to everyone's taste, offering the perfect blend of convenience and flavor. Stay 

tuned as we continue to develop this exciting new addition to our product lineup! 

 

3. Women's Protein Powder: As a part of Innovation, Dindigul Farm Product Limited (EnNutrica) is set 

to launch an innovative new product: Women's Protein Powder. This high-quality nutritional protein mix 

drink is specially developed under our "Nutrition for Women" initiative, tailored to meet the needs of every 

woman. Stay tuned for more updates on this groundbreaking addition to our product line! 
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4. Customized Solutions: Tailored milk protein powder solutions for clients, ensuring seamless integration 

with their products.  

At EnNutrica, our core mission is to address and rectify nutritional imbalances across different regions of 

the country. We are dedicated to studying these disparities and working diligently to promote balanced 

nutrition, contributing to a healthier environment for all. 

 

Market Dynamics: 
 

• Demand Growth:  

The expanding middle class in India, rising disposable incomes, and a preference for premium milk 

protein products are expected to drive demand for Dindigul Farm Product Limited's (EnNutrica) 

offerings. Urbanization also contributes to increased consumption of these products, as urban and 

rural consumers seek access to high-quality dairy options. 

 

• Competitive Landscape:  

The Indian dairy sector is highly competitive, with numerous small and large players. Dindigul 

Farm Product Limited (EnNutrica) competes with both local and large-scale producers. However, 

the company's focus on procuring high-quality milk for the production of premium products and 

its commitment to sustainable practices provide a competitive advantage in the health-conscious 

consumer market. 

 

• Supply Chain:  

The company boasts a well-established supply chain network that ensures the timely delivery of 

fresh products to the supply chain. Nevertheless, the sector remains susceptible to disruptions due 

to weather conditions, transportation challenges, and price volatility in dairy commodities. 

Dindigul Farm Product Limited (EnNutrica) has been investing in research and strategic analysis 

to mitigate these risks. 

 

• Logistics Challenges: 

Transporting milk powder involves several logistical challenges, including maintaining proper 

temperature and humidity control to prevent clumping and spoilage, ensuring airtight packaging to 

avoid contamination, and handling the product carefully to prevent damage during transit. 

Additionally, adherence to food safety regulations and timely delivery are crucial to maintaining 

product quality and meeting customer demands. 
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Expanding Global Reach and Product Offerings: 

Dindigul Farm Product Limited (EnNutrica) is actively focusing on expanding its global footprint by 

exporting high-quality Milk Protein Concentrates, Edible Acid Casein, and Sodium Caseinate to various 

countries around the world. Our commitment to excellence in production and quality control has not gone 

unnoticed, as many of our international vendors are now experiencing the benefits of our global presence. 

They have consistently recognized and appreciated our products, often highlighting them as superior to 

those offered by our global competitors. 

This positive feedback fuels our drive to continue expanding our reach. At Dindigul Farm Product Limited, 

we are not only dedicated to maintaining the high standards of our current products but are also eager to 

introduce new and innovative offerings to the global market. Among these, we are particularly focused on 

the development and export of infant baby formulations and fat-filled powders. These products are 

meticulously crafted to meet the basic nutritional needs of populations across different regions while 

respecting and incorporating their unique cultural and traditional dietary preferences. 

Our mission is to ensure that our products are not just another option on the market but are seen as essential 

contributions to the well-being and health of consumers worldwide. We believe that by understanding and 

respecting the diverse nutritional requirements and traditions of our target markets, we can create lasting 

relationships with our customers and continue to grow our global presence. As we move forward, we are 

committed to innovation, quality, and the continuous improvement of our product offerings to meet the 

evolving needs of consumers around the world. 

India-Specific Market Outlook: 

The Indian dairy protein powder market is expected to grow at a CAGR of 6.79% from 2025 to 2030, driven 

by increasing demand for protein-rich products, growing health and wellness awareness, and rising 

adoption in the food and beverage industry. 

Future Outlook 

Looking ahead, EnNutrica is optimistic about the future. The demand for high-quality, enrichment milk 

products is expected to continue growing, both in India and globally. We are progressing that our strategic 

initiatives, including our expansion into infant nutrition and ongoing investments in research and quality 

assurance, will position us to capitalize on these opportunities and drive sustainable growth. 

Our commitment to innovation, quality, and sustainability will remain at the forefront of our operations as 

we strive to deliver world-class products that meet the evolving needs of our clients and consumers.  

Continuous innovation, technological investment, and effective risk management are crucial for 

maintaining competitiveness in the dynamic dairy sector. 
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At Dindigul Farm Product Limited (EnNutrica), we are actively pursuing New Product Development 

(NPD) to enhance our order status. As a key decision, we've placed a new order for the import of advanced 

machinery from a well-esteemed manufacturer and have initiated initial payments to suppliers. To further 

streamline our operations, we're processing the import under the EPCG (Export Promotion of Capital 

Goods) scheme, enabling us to significantly reduce import duty costs. This marks yet another milestone in 

our journey of growth and innovation. 

Dindigul Farm Product Limited (EnNutrica) is well-positioned to capitalize on its high-quality milk 

procurement practices to produce world-class products for the Indian market. With a strong focus on 

quality, and a commitment to sustainability, the company has the potential to expand its market presence 

and achieve long-term growth.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

TO THE MEMBERS OF  

DINDIGUL FARM PRODUCT LIMITED 
 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements  

Opinion 
 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Dindigul Farm Product Limited 

(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and 

Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of 

Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and 

other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).  
 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 

Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 

Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in 

India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, the profit and total comprehensive 

income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.  

Basis for Opinion 
 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 

Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are 

further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements 

that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the 

Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.  

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report 

including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and 

Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the Standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report 

thereon.  
 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 

of assurance conclusion thereon.  
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 

in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 

our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  
 

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  
 

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 
 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 

respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 

financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows 

of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in 

India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 

the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 

frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone 

financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error.  
 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 

the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 

process.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 

standalone financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  
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• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 

system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.  

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 

report to the related disclosures in the Standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 

the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 

cease to continue as a going concern  

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 

manner that achieves fair presentation  

 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone financial statements that, individually or 

in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 

Standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 

factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 

evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Standalone financial statements.  

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards.  

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:  

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  

 

 



 

 Auditors Report | 055 

                                             

 
15th Annual Report 2024-25 

 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as 

it appears from our examination of those books.  

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with in this Report is 

agreeing with the relevant books of account.  

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 

Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.  

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 

2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.  

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 

A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 

Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.  

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the  

  requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 

  information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid/provided by 

the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 

of the Act.  

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the 

best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:  

i) The company has no pending litigation which impacts its financial position.  

ii) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses.  

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company  

iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or 

invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) 

by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), 

with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 

whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 

security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;  

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company 

from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, 

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 

of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like 

on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;  
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(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the  

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, 

contain any material misstatement.  

(d) The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year Hence we have no 

comments on the compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(e) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion 

and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:  

(i) The Company has used accounting software (Tally Prime Edit Log 5.1) for 

maintaining its books of accounts for the financial year ended March 31,2025 which 

has a feature of recording Audit Trail. 

 

(ii) The Audit Trail feature is Configurable and was enabled and operated throughout 

the year.  

 

(iii) All the transactions recorded in the software are covered in the Audit Trail feature.  

 

(iv) Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the 

audit trail feature being tampered with. 

 

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 

Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the 

matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.  

 

For Venkatesh & Co., 

Chartered Accountants  

FRN: 004636S 

 

Sd/- 

CA Dasaraty V 

Partner 

M. No 026336 

 

Date: June 07, 2025 

Place: Chennai                                                                                     

UDIN:  25026336BMIMYY5161 
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 

section of our report to the Members of Dindigul Farm Product Limited of even date) 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of 

Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Dindigul Farm 

Product Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the 

standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 

of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the 

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 

information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial 

reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 

“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the 

Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 

extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the 

Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 

financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 

in all material respects.  

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 

audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 

internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 

on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error.  
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting of the company. 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 

company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 

that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company 

are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; 

and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 

financial statements.  
 

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 

to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 

may deteriorate.  

 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as 

at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India.  

For Venkatesh & Co., 

Chartered Accountants  

FRN: 004636S 

 

Sd/- 

CA Dasaraty V 

Partner 

M. No 026336 
 

Date: June 07, 2025 

Place: Chennai                                                                                     

UDIN:  25026336BMIMYY5161 
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of 

our report to the Members of Dindigul Farm Product Limited of even date) 

 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the 

books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:  

 

i. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: 

 

a) A)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 

quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and equipment.  

B) There were no intangible Assets and hence reporting under this clause is not applicable.  

b) The Company has physically verified the Plant & Equipment by the management once a year. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were 

noticed on such verification.  

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and 

based on the examination of the conveyance deeds / registered sale deed provided to us, we 

report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings 

which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.  

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant & Equipment during the year   

e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company 

as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder  

 

ii. (a)  The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the coverage and the 

procedure of such verification by the Management is appropriate having regard to size of the Company 

and the nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of 

inventories were noticed on such physical verification when compared with books of account.  

(b) The Company has not availed any working capital limits at any point of time during the year in excess 

of five crores, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence 

reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

iii. The Company has not made investments in, companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, and 

granted unsecured loans to other parties, during the year, in respect of which:  

a. The Company has not provided loans or advances in the nature of loans or stood guarantee, 

or provided security to any other entity during the year, and hence reporting under 3(iii)(a) 

of the order is not applicable.  
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b. The company has not made investments or granted loan during the year and hence 

reporting under this clause is not applicable  

 

c. In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, The Company has granted loans or 

advances in the nature of loans during the previous year amounting to Rs. 286.42 Lakhs 

where no schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated.  

 

d. In the absence of schedule of repayment, reporting under this clause is not applicable.  

 

e. In the absence of schedule of repayment, reporting under this clause is not applicable.  

 

f. The Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on 

demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the previous year 

amounting to Rs. 286.42 Lakhs with a percentage of 100% of aggregate of loans granted 

to promoters, related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 

2013.  

 

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, Company has 

complied with the provisions of Sections 185 & 186 of the Act.  

v. The Company has not accepted deposits during the year or amounts which are deemed to be deposits 

and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section 

148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Thus 

reporting under clause 3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the Company.  

vii. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues: 

a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including 

Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with 

the appropriate authorities except a sum of ₹ 78,510 appearing as TDS Default in the Traces 

portal. 

b) The Company doesn’t have any disputed statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) and hence 

reporting under the clause 3(vii) (b) is not applicable.  

viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been 

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income 

Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).  

 

ix.  (a)  The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the 

payment of interest there on to any lender.  

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution 

or government or any government authority. 

 

(c) The term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.  
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(d)  On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on 

short-term basis have, prima facie, been used during the year for long-term purposes by the 

Company. 

 

(e)  On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has 

not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its 

subsidiaries.  

 

(f) the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its  

subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 
 

x. (a) The Company has raised moneys by way of initial public offer during the year and it has been applied 

for the purpose for which it has raised, except in the following cases:  

Nature of 

fund 

raised  

Purpose for 

which funds 

were raised  

Total 

amount 

raised / 

Opening 

unutilized 

balance  

Amount 

utilized for 

the other 

purpose  

Unutilized 

balance as at 

balance sheet 

date  

Details of default  
Subsequent rectification and 

details  

Initial 

public 

offer  

Funding capital 

expenditure  
1,212.33  Nil  650.69  

Supplier selected 

deviates from 

originally 

considered 

vendors in the 

prospectus  

The company changed the 

vendor to Milkon and 

Matrix Boiler for capital 

expenditure based on better 

cost efficiency, technical 

suitability, and compliance 

with export standards like 

US FDA and FSSAI. This 

decision was supported by 

external consultants and 

based on documented 

comparative analysis. The 

Board was informed, and 

necessary internal approvals 

were obtained. There is no 

diversion of funds, and the 

purpose remains as per the 

IPO object. The unutilized 

amount of ₹650.69 lakhs 

will be utilised in the 

upcoming quarters as 

planned.  
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Initial 

public 

offer 

To meet 

working capital 

Requirements 

1,384.00 Nil Nil Nil Utilised as per objects 

Initial 

public 

offer 

General 

Corporate 

Purpose 

566.67 Nil Nil Nil Utilised as per objects 

 

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 

placement of Preference shares and hence reporting under this clause is not applicable. 
 

xi. (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported 

during the year.  

 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in 

Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with 

the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report 

 (c) The Company has not received any complaints from whistle blower during the year. 

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is 

not applicable.  

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is 

in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all 

transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been 

disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.  

xiv. a) The Company has separate internal audit system; the existing internal controls are commensurate 

with the size and the nature of its business.  

b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period have been considered by the statutory auditor.  

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the 

Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected to 

its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to 

the Company. 

xvi. (a)  In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve 

Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not 

applicable.  

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core  
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Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause  

3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

xvii. The company has incurred cash losses amounting to ₹ 261.15 lakhs in the current financial year.  

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year.  

 

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and 

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our 

knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the 

evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe 

that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is 

not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due 

within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an 

assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on 

the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that 

all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged 

by the Company as and when they fall due.  

xx. According the information and explanations given to us, provisions of section 135 of Companies Act 

2013 are applicable and the Company has spent such amount in accordance with above provisions 

during the FY 2024 25 and,  

a) The company is not required to transfer unspent amount to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the 

Companies Act, as the Company has spent such amount till the date of our report and hence reporting 

under clause xx(a) of the order is not applicable. 

xxi. The company is not required to transfer unspent amount to a fund specified in Schedule VII as there 

are no such ongoing projects being carried by the company and hence reporting under clause xx(a) of 

the order is not applicable.  

 

  

For Venkatesh & Co., 

Chartered Accountants  

FRN: 004636S 

 

Sd/- 

CA Dasaraty V 

Partner 

M. No 026336 

 

Date: June 07, 2025 

Place: Chennai                                                                                     

UDIN:  25026336BMIMYY5161 
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025 

Note 1: Corporate Information 

The Company was incorporated on September 29, 2010 as a private limited company under The Companies 

Act, 2013. The Company is in the business of Processing of Milk and Production of Milk Products. 

 

Note 2: Basis of preparation of financial statements 

Statement of compliance 

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the 

historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at 

fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued 

by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the 

Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. 

Basis of preparation and presentation 

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS), under the 

historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at 

fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the 

Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment 

rules issued thereafter. 

Effective April 1, 2022, the Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoption was carried out 

in accordance with Ind AS 101 First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, with April 1, 2022 as the 

transition date. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India 

as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

(IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP.  

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is 

initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy 

hitherto in use. The year-end figures have been meticulously extracted from the source and all values are 

represented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) and are denoted in lakhs. Figures for earlier years have been regrouped 

wherever necessary to make them comparable with current year’s figures 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) 

requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting 

policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent 

liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates 

and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is 

recognised prospectively in current and future periods. 

Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional currency. 

All financial information presented in INR has been rounded to the nearest lakhs (up to two decimals).  
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Note 3: Significant Accounting Policies 

3.1   Current and Non-Current Classification: 

 The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/noncurrent 

classification. 

An asset is treated as current when it is: 

• Expected to be realized in normal operating cycle or within twelve months after the reporting 

period or 

• Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 

least twelve months after the reporting period. 

  All other assets are classified as non-current. 

  A liability is current when: 

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle or due to be settled within twelve months after 

the reporting period or 

• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 

after the reporting period. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

3.2 Inventories (Ind AS 2) 

Inventories comprise of raw materials and packing materials, work-in-progress, finished goods, stock-in-

trade and stores and spares and are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of 

inventories is based on the weighted average cost method and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring 

the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present 

location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress, cost includes an 

appropriate share of fixed production overheads based on normal operating capacity. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated 

costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The net realisable value of work-

in progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished products. The comparison 

of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis. 

Raw materials, components and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are not 

written down below cost except in cases where material prices have declined, and it is estimated that the 

cost of the finished products will exceed their net realisable value. 

Goods-in-transit are valued at cost which represents the costs incurred upto the stage at which the goods 

are in-transit. 

3.3 Cash flow Statement (Ind AS 7) 

Cash flows are presented using indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the 

effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or 

payments. 

 

 



   

Notes to Financial Statement | 089 

                                             

 
15th Annual Report 2024-25 

 

Bank borrowings are generally considered to be financing activities. However, where bank overdrafts 

which are repayable on demand form an integral part of an entity's cash management, bank overdrafts are 

included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash flow statement. 

3.4 Provision for Current Tax and Deferred Tax (Ind AS 12) 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid 

to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted 

or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the 

tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and 

establishes provisions where appropriate. 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 

in the Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets 

are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that 

taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 

Considering the Prudence and Unutilised Tax Losses, which results in Net Deferred Tax Assets has not 

been recognized. 

3.5 Property, Plant & Equipment (Ind AS 16) 

Presentation 

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition including attributable interest and finance 

cost, if any, till the date of acquisition/ installation of the assets less accumulated depreciation and 

impairment losses, if any. 

Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalised only when it is probable 

that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item 

can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the Statement of Profit 

and Loss as incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial 

statements, either on disposal or when retired from active use and the resultant gain or loss are recognized 

in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Capital work-in-progress, representing expenditure incurred in respect of assets under development and 

not ready for their intended use, are carried at cost. Cost includes related acquisition expenses, construction 

cost, related borrowing cost and other direct expenditure. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation on items of Property, Plant & Equipment is calculated on a Written Down Value basis as per 

the useful lives prescribed and, in the manner, laid down under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 

and additions and deletions are restricted to the period of use. If the Management’s estimate of the useful 

life of a fixed asset is different than that envisaged in the aforesaid Schedule, depreciation is provided 

based on the Management’s estimate of the useful life. 

Depreciation on addition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of 

acquisition. Depreciation on sale/deduction from property, plant and equipment is provided up to the date 

preceding the date of sale or deduction as the case may be. Gains and losses on disposal are determined 

by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. 
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3.6 Revenue Recognition (Ind AS 115) 

Revenue is primarily derived from sale of milk products and milk processing charges. Sales are  

recognized net of discounts, on transfer of title over goods with significant risks and rewards, for a price 

and where no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived 

from the sale of the goods. 

Sales have been recognized net of any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government such as goods 

and services tax, etc. 

Revenue from service contracts are recognized as per the contractual terms as and when the services are 

rendered. No further obligations remains, and the collection is probable. 

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the 

rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the 

gross carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest income is included under the head “other income” 

in the statement of profit and loss. 

3.7 Foreign Currency Transaction (Ind AS 21) 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates at the 

dates of the transactions. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translations of monetary items 

are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

3.8 Borrowing cost (Ind AS 23) 

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition of or construction of a qualifying asset are 

capitalized as part of cost of such asset till such time as the asset is ready for its intended use. Other 

borrowing costs are recognized as expenses for the period. In relation to property, plant and equipment 

which necessarily take substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, borrowing costs 

relating to the acquisition of the assets, up to the date of putting them into commercial production have 

been added to the value of the respective assets. 

3.9 Earnings per Share (Ind AS 33) 

Basic Earnings Per Share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders by 

the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is 

computed by dividing the net profit by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 

the year. 

3.10 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (Ind AS 37) 

Provisions, involving a substantial degree of estimation in measurement, are recognized when there is a 

present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. 

Contingent liabilities, which are possible or present obligations that may but probably will not require 

outflow of resources, are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes forming part of accounts. 
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3.11 Financial Instruments (IND AS 32, 107, 109) 

a. Initial recognition 

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on 

initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. 

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial 

liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition. 

Loans, borrowings and payables are recognised net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

Financial assets or Liabilities carried at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose 

objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the 

financial Liabilities give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 

interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Financial assets 

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date 

basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of 

assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. All recognized 

financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair value, 

depending on the classification of the financial assets. 

Classification of financial Assets 

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortized cost (except 

for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition). The 

debt instruments carried at amortized cost include interest free Rental deposits. 

• The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect 

contractual cash flows; and  

• The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

a. Effective interest method 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and of 

allocating interest expenses over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 

discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an 

integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the 

expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount 

on initial recognition. 

Expense is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial 

liabilities classified as at FVTPL. Interest expense is recognized in profit or loss and is included in the 

Finance cost line item. 

b. Impairment of financial assets 

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognizing impairment loss on financial assets 

measured at amortized cost, lease receivables, trade receivables, and other contractual rights to receive 

cash or other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at FVTPL. 

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default 

occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to 
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the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive 

(i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective 

interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash 

flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument through the expected life of that 

financial instrument. The Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This 

expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account 

historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information or case to case basis. 

c. De-recognition of financial assets 

The Company de-recognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 

expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of 

the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and 

rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained 

interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains 

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company 

continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds 

received. 

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount 

and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been 

recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit or loss if 

such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on disposal of that financial 

asset. 

Financial Liabilities 

a. Financial liabilities 

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method 

or at FVTPL. However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify 

for de-recognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts 

issued by the Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan at below-market 

interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below. 

b. Financial liabilities at FVTPL 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include derivative liabilities. Non-derivative financial liabilities are 

classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration recognized by the 

Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or is held for trading or 

it is designated as at FVTPL. There are no non-derivative financial liabilities carried at FVTPL. 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement 

recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid 

on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item. 

c. Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortized cost 

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at 

amortized cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities 

that are subsequently measured at amortized cost are determined based on the effective interest method. 

Interest expense that is not capitalized as part of costs of an asset is included in the ‘Finance costs’ line 

item. 
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The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of 

allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 

discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an 

integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the 

expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount 

on initial recognition. 

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign 

currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are 

measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and 

is recognized in profit or loss. 

d. De-recognition of financial liabilities 

The Company de-recognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are 

discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with 

substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and 

the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing 

financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as 

an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The 

difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid 

and payable is recognized in profit or loss. 

In compliance with Notification issued by Government of India (MCA) on amended format of Schedule 

III vide its order dated 24th March 2021, the figures appearing in financial statements have been rounded 

off to nearest lakhs (for both current and previous reporting periods). 

34. Figures for the previous year have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary. 
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Registered Office: 
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Factory Address: 
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